










 
Town of Surfside 

Town Commission Meeting 
December 08, 2009  

 7 p.m.  
Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Fl 

Surfside, FL  33154 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. Opening     

A. Call to Order   
The meeting was called to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 

B. Roll Call of Members 
Town Clerk, Debra Eastman called the roll and the following were present:  
Commissioner Elizabeth Calderon, Commissioner Steven Levine, Commissioner 
Howard Weinberg, Vice Mayor Marc Imberman and Mayor Charles Burkett. 
 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Chief of Police, David Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

D. Agenda and Order of Business (Additions, Deletions) 
Commissioner Elizabeth Calderon requested to add item 5, Holiday Lights.  Mayor 
Charles Burkett stated item 8B is being removed from the agenda. 
 

E. Special Presentations  
1. Officer of the Month – Chief David Allen  

Chief David Allen presented Officer Ted Arboleda with a plaque as Officer of the 
Month for his outstanding effort, his proactive patrol, and for taking criminals off 
the street. 
 
Chief David Allen presented Max Moreno with a plaque as Officer of the Month 
for his accomplishments in apprehending a burglar and his compassion and caring 
in the emergency delivery of a baby. 
 

2.   Special Recognition – Chief David Allen, Sixth Citizen’s Police Academy 
      Graduates 

            Detective Frank Colonna introduced and congratulated members of the Sixth 
            Citizen’s Police Academy and outlined the program. 

 
3.   Recognition of Surfside Post Office Employees – Commissioner Elizabeth 
      Calderon 
      On behalf of Mayor Charles Burkett, Commissioner Elizabeth Calderon presented 
      Certificates of Recognition to the Supervisors and Sales Service Associates from 

1



  
  the Surfside Post Office for their kind and patient service to the Town residents. 
  Post Office Supervisor, Mary Bryant received the Certificates on behalf of  
  the postal employees and expressed appreciation for their recognition. 

 
4.   Community Center Update – CGA/AECOM 
      Larry Kline explained that the Community Center and Aquatic Facility bid  

opening will take place December 9, 2009 at 2 p.m.  The Selection Committee 
will meet and make a recommendation at the Special Commission Meeting 
scheduled for December 15, 2009. 

 
5.   Holiday Lights – Commissioner Elizabeth Calderon 
      Commissioner Elizabeth Calderon thanked Duncan Tavares, Tourist Bureau 
      Director for finding the improved holiday lights for the Town and thanked the 
      Tourist Bureau Board for their financial contribution. 
      

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings 

3. Consent Agenda  
All items on the consent agenda are considered routine by the Town Commission and will 
be approved by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 
Commissioner so requests, in which event, the item will be moved to the main agenda 
under the appropriate heading for consideration. 
 
Recommended Motion:  To approve all consent agenda items as presented below. 
 
A. Minutes –  November 10, 2009 Regular Commission Meeting 

 
B.  Resolution Calling for March 16, 2010 General Election –  
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, PROVIDING FOR HOLDING A GENERAL 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION UNDER THE DATE OF MARCH 16, 2010 FOR 
THE ELECTION OF MAYOR AND ALL FOUR COMMISSIONERS OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE. 

 
C. Resolution Appointing Canvassing Board for March 16, 2010 General Election – 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPOINTING  THE CANVASSING BOARD FOR 
THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD MARCH 16, 
2010; DESIGNATING AN ALTERNATE; ESTABLISHING A QUORUM 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
D. Monthly Budget to Actual Summary - Martin Sherwood, Finance Support Services 

Department Head 
 

E. Projects Progress Report – George Keller, Calvin, Giordano & Associates 
 
F. Resolution Updating Town’s Investment Policy – Martin Sherwood, Finance  

             Support Services Department Head 

2



  
 A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION FOR THE TOWN OF 
 SURFSIDE, FLORIDA SUPERSEDING RESOLUTION NO. 1520 AND 
 RESOLUTION NO. 1473 APPROVING AN INVESTMENT POLICY OF THE 
 TOWN FOR TOWN FUNDS; CONTAINING OBJECTIVES; DELEGATION OF 
 AUTHORITY; PROVISIONS FOR MONITORING AND ADJUSTING THE 
 PORTFOLIO; INTERNAL CONTROLS; QUALIFIED INVESTMENTS;  
 DIVERSIFICATION AND MATURITY; PROVISIONS FOR COMPETITIVE 
 SELECTION; PROVISIONS RELATING TO QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONS; 
 PROVISIONS RELATING TO SAFEGUARDING AND CENTRALIZATION; 
 AND ACCOUNTING METHODS AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS AND 
 PERFORMANCE EVALUATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 A motion was made by Vice Mayor Marc Imberman to approve the resolution.  The 
            motion received a second from Commissioner Howard Weinberg.  Finance Support 

Services Department Head, Martin Sherwood reviewed the objective of the resolution.   
 

Mayor Charles Burkett requested that the resolution be prepared in strikethrough and 
underline format to make the proposed changes clear.  He requested that Mr. Sherwood 
meet with Mr. Stan Bershad and members of the Pension Board to review the changes.  
Vice Mayor Imberman and Commissioner Weinberg withdrew the motion.  
Commissioner Steven Levine made a motion to defer this item to the next Regular 
Meeting.   The motion received a second from Commissioner Elizabeth Calderon.  Mayor 
Charles Burkett called for the vote and all were in favor.   
 
G. Special Commission Meeting, December 15, 2009 – Gary Word, Town Manager 

 
A motion was made by Vice Mayor Marc Imberman to adopt the consent agenda and to 
remove item F from the consent agenda.  The motion received a second from 
Commissioner Howard Weinberg.  Mayor Charles Burkett called for the vote and all 
were in favor.   

   
4. Ordinances and Public Hearings 

A.  Second Readings (Ordinances)   

1.  Off-Street Parking and Loading – Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
AMENDING ARTICLE 1, SECTION 90.2 “DEFINITIONS”; ARTICLE 
VII. “OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING”; SECTION 90.77 
“OFF-STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS”; AMENDING 
SECTION 90.78 “INTERPRETATION OF THESE REQUIREMENTS”; 
AND AMENDING SECTION 90.81 “DESIGN STANDARDS”; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION 
IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
Town Clerk, Debra Eastman read the title of the ordinance.  A motion was 
made by Commissioner Elizabeth Calderon to adopt the ordinance on second 

3



  
reading.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Steven Levine.  
Town Clerk, Debra Eastman called the roll and the motion passed 4-1 with 
Mayor Burkett voting in opposition. 
 
2.  Annual Update to Capital Improvement Element within the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan – Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, ADOPTING THE ANNUAL UPDATE TO THE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT WITHIN THE TOWN’S 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 
163.3177, FLORIDA STATUTES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICT, INCLUSION IN THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.   
 
Town Clerk, Debra Eastman read the title of the ordinance.  A motion was 
made by Commissioner Steven Levine to adopt the ordinance on second 
reading.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Elizabeth 
Calderon.  Town Clerk, Debra Eastman called the roll and the motion passed 
4-1 with Mayor Charles Burkett voting in opposition. 
 
3.  Amending Purchasing Ordinance – Martin Sherwood, Finance Support 
Services Department Head 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 3 “PURCHASING” OF 
THE CODE OF THE TOWN TO PROVIDE FOR AN ADDED 
SECTION 3.6 F. FOR LOCAL PREFERENCES; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

   

Town Clerk, Debra Eastman read the title of the ordinance.  A motion was made by 
Vice Mayor Marc Imberman to adopt the ordinance on second reading.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Elizabeth Calderon.  Finance Support Services 
Department Head, Martin Sherwood explained the local vendor preference 
provisions.  Town Clerk, Debra Eastman called the roll and the motion passed 4-0 
with Vice Mayor Marc Imberman absent at the time of the vote. 

 

B. First Readings (Public Hearings on Ordinances) 
 
1.  Carport Canopy Ordinance – Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90.2 AND 90.58 
“CARPORT CANOPIES” OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH;   AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

4



  
Town Clerk, Debra Eastman read the title of the ordinance.  A motion to 
introduce the ordinance on first reading was made by Commissioner Steven 
Levine.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Elizabeth 
Calderon.  Town Clerk, Debra Eastman called the roll and the motion passed 
4-0 with Vice Mayor Imberman absent at the time of the vote. 
 

5. Resolutions and Proclamations 

     
      6.  Good and Welfare  

Public comments for subjects or items not on the agenda.  Public comment on agenda 
items will be allowed when agenda item is discussed by the Commission. 
There were no public comments at this time. 
 

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports 
  
       8.  Unfinished Business and New Business 
 

A. Library – Reimbursement for Cards – Duncan Tavares, Tourist Bureau 
Duncan Tavares, Tourist Bureau Director explained the proposal.  Daryl Wahl 
suggested that each household have one reimbursable library card.  Paul Yavis 
agreed that one card is the appropriate number. 
Vice Mayor Marc Imberman made a motion to devote $5,000 from the budget to the 
reimbursement of library cards, one per household.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Steven Levine.  Mayor Charles Burkett called for the vote and 
all were in favor. 
 

B. Proposed purchase of vacant lot – Gary Word, Town Manager 
This item removed from the agenda. 

  
       9.  Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications  
  

A. Downtown Maintenance – Commissioner Elizabeth Calderon 
Commissioner Elizabeth Calderon suggested asking business owners to clean the 
streets fronting their building.  Town Attorney, Lynn Dannheisser, was directed to 
prepare legislation that would require store owners to keep the front of the stores 
clean with the understanding that the Town will occasionally, perhaps quarterly, 
pressure wash the sidewalks. 
 

B. Education Committee  – Vice Mayor Marc Imberman 
Vice Mayor Marc Imberman made a motion to disband the Education Committee.  
The motion received a second from Commissioner Steven Levine.  Mayor Charles 
Burkett called for the vote and all were in favor. 
 

C. Committee Vacancies – Town Clerk 
1. Parks and Recreation Committee Appointment –Commissioner Steven Levine 

Dr. Rasciel Soccaras 

5



Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

December 8, 2009 
  

6 
  

 

2. 75th Anniversary Committee Appointment – Commissioner Elizabeth Calderon 
Randy Rubin  

3. Tourist Bureau Board Appointment – Commissioner Marc Imberman 
Barbara McLauglin 
 
Town Clerk, Debra Eastman provided the monthly Committee report.  By 
consensus the Town Commission made the above appointments to the respective 
Committees. 

  
      10. Adjournment  The meeting adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 

 

Accepted this ____ day of ____, 2010. 
 
 
 
            
        Charles Burkett, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 

 _______________________________ 
 Debra E. Eastman, MMC 
 Town Clerk 

 

 
 
 

6



 
Town of Surfside 

Special Town Commission Meeting 
December 15, 2009  

 7 p.m.  
Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Fl 

Surfside, FL  33154 
 

MINUTES 
 

1.  Opening     

A. Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 

B. Roll Call of Members 
Town Clerk, Debra Eastman called the roll and the following were present:  
Commissioner Elizabeth Calderon, Commissioner Steven Levine, Commissioner 
Howard Weinberg, and Mayor Charles Burkett.  Vice Mayor Marc Imberman arrived 
at 7:15 p.m. 
 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Chief of Police, David Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

D. Resolutions 
 

1.  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPOINTING  THE CANVASSING BOARD 
FOR THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION TO BE HELD 
MARCH 16, 2010; DESIGNATING AN ALTERNATE; 
ESTABLISHING A QUORUM AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
Town Clerk, Debra Eastman read the title of the resolution.  Town Manager, 
Gary Word explained that the Town Clerk and Town Manager are by Charter 
members of the Canvassing Board.  He recommended that the Commission 
appoint the Town Attorney as the third member for this election.  A motion to 
adopt the resolution and appoint the Town Attorney as a member of the 
Canvassing Board was made by Commissioner Steven Levine.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Elizabeth Calderon.  Mayor Charles 
Burkett called for the vote and all were in favor. 

 
2. A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 

SURFSIDE, FLORIDA SELECTING THE FIRM OF WEST 
CONSTRUCTION, INC. TO BE THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR FOR 
THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE REVISED COMMUNITY CENTER 
AND AQUATIC FACILITY; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN 

7



Minutes 
Special Commission Meeting 

December 15, 2009 
  

2 
  

 

MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY TO ENTER INTO 
NEGOTIATIONS FOR A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO BUILD 
THE COMMUNITY CENTER AND AQUATIC FACILITY DESIGN 
BASED ON THE TERMS OF THE BID; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  
Town Clerk, Debra Eastman read the title of the resolution.  A motion to 
adopt the resolution was made by Commissioner Steven Levine.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Elizabeth Calderon. 
 
Larry Kline gave an overview of the process to date.  Chris Giordano, Calvin-
Giordano reviewed the bid process and subsequent recommendation of West 
Construction.  Town Attorney, Lynn Dannheisser explained the legal review 
of the bids.  Town Clerk, Debra Eastman called the roll and all were in favor. 

     
      2. Adjournment   The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 

 

Accepted this ____ day of ____, 2010. 
 
 
 
            
        Charles Burkett, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 

 _______________________________ 
 Debra E. Eastman, MMC 
 Town Clerk 

 

 

 

8



9



Charles W. Burkett 
Mayor 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
9293 Harding Avenue 
Municipal Bui lding 
9293 Harding Avenue 
Surfs ide, Flor ida   33154 
(305) 861-4863 
(305) 861-1302 

Marc Imberman 
Vice Mayor 

Howard Weinberg 
Commissioner 

Steven Levine,, ESQ. 
Commissioner 

 

Elizabeth Calderon, ESQ. 
Commissioner 

Gary Word 
 Town Manager 

Website:www.townofsurfsidefl.gov/ 10



11



12



13

deastman
Typewritten Text
3D, 3E, 3F



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54

deastman
Typewritten Text
3G



55



56



57

deastman
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A



  Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

 

 1

Table of Contents 
 

Section Page 
1.0 Overview and Executive Summary.......................................................................1-1 
 
 1.1 Plan Purpose ................................................................................................1-1 
 1.2 Legal And Regulatory Compliance ...............................................................1-1 
 
2.0 Plan Distribution.....................................................................................................2-1 
 
 2.1 Distribution List .............................................................................................2-1 
 2.2 Table of Revisions ........................................................................................2-3 
 2.3 Plan Update and Maintenance .....................................................................2-4 
 2.4 Plan Adoption Requirements........................................................................2-4 
 
3.0 Situation and Assumptions...................................................................................3-1 
 
 3.1 Situation........................................................................................................3-1 
 3.2 Assumptions .................................................................................................3-5 
 3.3 Hazard Identification and Risk Assessment .................................................3-6 
 
4.0 Emergency Preparedness .....................................................................................4-1 
 
 4.1 Summary of Municipal Capabilities ..............................................................4-1 
 4.2 Emergency Preparedness Program .............................................................4-1 
 4.3 Training.........................................................................................................4-3 
 4.4 Exercises and Improvement Planning ..........................................................4-4 
 4.5 Post-Exercise and Post-Event Evaluation and Plan Revision ......................4-6 
 4.7 Pre-Emergency Public Information and Education.......................................4-6 
 
5.0 Organization and Staffing......................................................................................5-1 
 
 5.1 Coordination of Municipal Emergency Response Operations ......................5-1 
 5.2 Coordination of Municipal Emergency Response Operations 
  with Private Sector Emergency Operations..................................................5-1 
 5.3 Daily (Non-Emergency) Organization and Staffing.......................................5-1 
 5.4 Emergency Response Organization.............................................................5-7 
 5.5 Daily Emergency Management Responsibilities by Position........................5-8 
 5.6 Emergency Responsibilities by Position.....................................................5-11 
 
6.0 Concept of Operations...........................................................................................6-1 
 
 6.1 Event Recognition and Plan Activation.........................................................6-1 
 6.2 Public Warning and Emergency Instruction..................................................6-2 
 6.3 Initial Field Response Actions ......................................................................6-2 
 6.4 Activation of the Municipal Emergency Operations Center (EOC) ...............6-3 
 6.5 Classification of Emergencies and Disasters ...............................................6-4 
 6.6 Operations of the EOC .................................................................................6-5 

58



  Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

 

 2

 6.7 Emergency Facilities ....................................................................................6-7 
 6.8 Public Information During and After Emergencies........................................6-8 
 6.9 Deactivation of Emergency Operations Center ............................................6-8 
 
7.0 Recovery .................................................................................................................7-1 
 
 7.1 Recovery Operations Overview....................................................................7-1 
 7.2 Preliminary Damage Assessment ................................................................7-2 
 7.3 Long-Term Recovery Operations .................................................................7-3 
 
8.0 Communications ....................................................................................................8-1 
 
 8.1 Available Communications Systems ............................................................8-1 
 8.2 Coordination with Broward County and the State of Florida.........................8-1 
 
9.0 Policies and Protocols...........................................................................................9-1 
 
 9.1 Policies .........................................................................................................9-1 
 9.2 Protocols.......................................................................................................9-3 
 
10.0 Authorities and References.................................................................................10-1 
  
11.0 Definitions and Acronyms...................................................................................11-1 
 
12.0 Annexes ................................................................................................................12-1 
 
 12.1 Financial Management Annex ....................................................................12-1 
 12.2 Resource Management Annex ...................................................................12-3 
 12.3 Public Information Annex............................................................................12-6 
 
 
List of Charts 
Chart 1: Organizational Chart for Daily Operation ...............................................................5-2 
Chart 2: Emergency Organization Chart ..............................................................................5-7 
 
List of Figures 
Map 1: Critical Facilities  .....................................................................................................3-3 
Map 2: Land Use Map  ........................................................................................................3-9 
Map 3: Surge Inundation Area ...........................................................................................3-10 
Map 4: Flood Zones…........................................................................................................3-11 
Map 5: Storm Water Station...............................................................................................3-13 
Map 6: Hazardous Materials Facility ..................................................................................3-14 
 
List of Tables 
Table 1:  Demographics .......................................................................................................3-1 
Table 2:  Incidence of Possible Hazards ...........................................................................3-16 
Table 3: Service Providers for the Town..............................................................................5-3 
Table 4: Municipal Emergency Organization .......................................................................5-6 
 

59



  Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

 

 3

 
Appendices 
Appendix 1: ICS Forms .................................................................................................... A1-1 
Appendix 2: Damage Assessment Forms......................................................................... A2-1 
Appendix 3: Daily Activity Log........................................................................................... A3-1 

 

 

60



  Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

 

Overview and Executive Summary  1-1 

Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 
 
1.0 OVERVIEW AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
1.1 PLAN PURPOSE 
The purpose of the plan is to guide municipal emergency response and recovery operations 
by reducing the vulnerability of people and property from large-scale disasters, ensuring an 
effective response to the impacts of a disaster, and ensuring long-term community recovery. 
 
The Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) describes the policies, strategies, operational goals 
and objectives through which the Town will mobilize resources and conduct response and 
recovery activities after a large-scale disaster. 
 
This plan details an all-hazards emergency management framework, which embodies all 
aspects of prevention, mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery.  The plan 
establishes municipal policies and protocols under which emergency operations are to be 
conducted.  
 
This plan establishes the organizational system for comprehensive emergency management 
in compliance with the National Incident Management System (NIMS) as well as Federal, 
State, and County requirements.  Roles and responsibilities for implementing emergency 
operations are assigned to individuals, agencies, and contract organizations. 
 
This plan is designed to address all hazards yet must remain flexible.  Policies, operational 
procedures, and responsibilities may be modified to meet disaster conditions. 
  
1.2 LEGAL AND REGULATORY COMPLIANCE WITH NIMS, 
COUNTY AND STATE REQUIREMENTS 
The Town of Surfside has prepared an Emergency Operations Plan to document and detail 
its policies and operational concepts to be used during emergency response operations, as 
well as the organizational responsibilities for the plan implementation and maintenance.  
 
This plan reflects the existing capabilities of the municipal agencies and the jurisdiction’s 
community support organizations to conduct standard emergency operations and to 
implement the emergency plan. The Town of Surfside relies upon contractual services by 
county agency providers in order to provide both daily and emergency responsibilities. This 
plan will define how to implement these operational procedures. (See Table 3 for further 
service provider information.) 
 

61



  Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

 

Overview and Executive Summary  1-2 

 
This plan establishes uniform policies and procedures consistent with the National Incident 
Management System (NIMS) for the effective coordination of resources to cope with a wide 
variety of natural, man-made, and technological emergencies. These emergencies may 
differ in size and severity and may affect the health, safety, or general welfare of the people 
of Town of Surfside. The Town of Surfside has adopted NIMS under Resolution Number 
2005-1700. This plan is written in compliance with the requirements of the NIMS, the Florida 
Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan, the Miami-Dade County Comprehensive 
Emergency Management Plan, and the National Response Framework. 
 
The municipal emergency plan will reference or incorporate written procedures, job aides, 
and field guides developed by the Town and required for use by Miami-Dade County or the 
State of Florida.  Procedures are being developed for the activation, operation and 
deactivation of the Emergency Operations Center.  
 
The municipal emergency plan defines the NIMS based concept of operations to be used by 
the Town during emergencies and the responsibility for its implementation.  The Town 
Mayor, or in his absence, the Vice-Mayor, or in his absence, the Town Manager, may 
activate the plan in accordance with activation procedures which are further detailed in 
Section 6.  
 
 
 

62



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

 

Plan Distribution  2-1 

2.0 PLAN DISTRIBUTION  
 
2.1 DISTRIBUTION LIST 
The Town of Surfside EOP will be distributed once every four years, or whenever significant 
revisions are necessary, or as directed by the Town Manager.  The plan will be distributed to 
the following individuals: 
 

 Town Commission 
 Town Mayor, Town of Surfside 
 Vice-Mayor, Town of Surfside 
 Town Manager, Town of Surfside 
 Town Clerk, Town of Surfside 
 Parks and Recreation Director, Town of Surfside 
 Town Attorney, Town of Surfside 
 Public Works Director, Town of Surfside 
 Finance Director, Town of Surfside 
 Public Works Administrative Manager,  Calvin, Giordano and Associates 
 Building & Zoning Manager,  Calvin, Giordano and Associates 
 Tourist Bureau, Town of Surfside 
 Human Resources, Town of Surfside 
 Information and Technology Manager, Calvin, Giordano and Associates 
 Planning Manager, Calvin, Giordano and Associates 
 Redevelopment Officer, Calvin, Giordano and Associates 
 Police Chief, Town of Surfside Police Department 
 Assistant Police Chief, Town of Surfside Police Department 
 Director, Miami-Dade County Department of Emergency Management 
 District Fire Chief, Miami-Dade Fire Department 
 North Miami Emergency Management Coordinator, Miami-Dade County OEM 
 Director, Miami-Dade County OECMS (Office of Engineering and Construction 

Management Services) 
 Village Manager, Village of Bal Harbour 
 Town Manager, Town of Bay Harbor Islands 
 City Manager, City of North Miami  
 City Manager, City of Miami Beach 

 

63



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

 

Plan Distribution  2-2 

In addition, annually, the Town Manager will re-evaluate emergency management 
assignments within the Emergency Operations Center with the goal of developing each 
position to a depth of three levels for each vital position. Each individual assigned to the 
roster, will annually receive a copy of the plan to include:  
 

 Planning Section Chief and staff 
 Logistics Section Chief and staff 
 Operations Section Chief and staff 
 Finance Section Chief and staff 
 Public Information Officer 
 Police Chief  

 
 
 
 

64



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Plan Distribution  2-3 

 
2.2 TABLE OF REVISIONS 
 
Date Pages / 

Section 
Description Signature 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
 

65



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Plan Distribution  2-4 

 
2.3 PLAN UPDATE AND MAINTENANCE  
The Emergency Preparedness Committee under the direction of the Assistant Police Chief 
is responsible for annually reviewing the EOP.  The Assistant Police Chief is responsible for 
annually updating all annexes which reference contact information and other changing 
information.  The Basic Plan and Functional Annexes will be updated once every four years 
unless substantial deficiencies are demonstrated through an actual or simulated disaster 
response incident. The Town Manager may also direct more frequent updates as the 
environment, conditions, or assumptions within the Town change.  
 
2.4 PLAN ADOPTION REQUIRMENTS 
As outlined in Policy Statement 6.5 of the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, the Surfside Town 
Commission will adopt this plan no later than December 2011.  Upon substantive revision or 
within four years of the time of adoption, this plan will be reviewed and again formally 
adopted by the Town Commission.  The plan may also be evaluated following major 
exercise of the plan and following any significant implementation of the plan, and modified if 
indicated.  Each approval and adoption will provide the local authority and instruction for 
plan implementation by response organizations.  Modifications to the plan made between 
formal approvals by the governing body will constitute an administrative update to the 
previously approved plan and not require formal approval. 
 
 
 
 

66



 
Town of Surfside 

Emergency Operations Plan 

 

Situation and Assumptions  3-1 

 

3.0 SITUATION AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
3.1 SITUATION 
3.1.1 Demographics/Characteristics of the Community   
The Town of Surfside is a beautiful oceanfront community located in the tropical paradise of 
South Florida. The Town encompasses the area from 87th Terrace to 96th Street, and it is 
situated between the City of Miami Beach to the South and the Village of Bal Harbour to the 
North. The Town of Surfside, with a population of only 5,600, combines a tranquil, attractive, 
residential neighborhood with a traditional "home town" shopping district and a number of 
resorts and hotels.  Surfside is a family vacation destination; Surfside is also within close 
proximity range of all of South Florida's world renowned attractions. 
 
 

Table 1:  Demographics  
Ethnicity Total Number  % of Population per Ethnicity 
White 4,590 93.5% 
Black 63 1.3% 
Native American 2 0.0% 
Asian 57 1.2% 
Other Pacific Islander 1 0.0% 
Two or more races 122 2.5% 
Other 74 1.5% 
Population Total 4,909 100.0% 
Sex/Age Group # per Sex/Age Group % of Population per Sex/Age Group 
M < 18 377 16.5% 
M 18 - 64 1,354 59.3% 
M > 65 552 24.2% 
F < 18 421 16.0% 
F 18 - 64 1,487 56.6% 
F > 65 718 27.4% 
 4,909 100.0% 
Total Pop by Sex Total Number % of Population per Sex 
Total Male 2,283 46.5% 
Total Female 2,626 53.5% 
 4,909 100.0% 
Total # of 
Households 2,248 100.0% 

67



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions  3-2 

While most of Surfside is composed of residential neighborhoods, the Town has its own business 
and commercial district which includes restaurants and a variety of retail stores.   

Surfside is also close-by to other popular locations such as South Beach, downtown Miami, Oleta 
State Park, Haulover Park and Beach, North Shore Open Space Park, area golf courses, marinas 
with rental boating and fishing expeditions, and to all area seaports and airports. 

While all of these community assets stand out on their own, the thing that makes Surfside most 
impressive is its strong and consistent commitment to the quality of life of its residents. Old and 
new houses are mixed together in a quiet, peaceful and relaxed neighborhood setting. The 
condominiums and hotels along the oceanfront on A1A are not permitted to exceed 12 stories in 
height. 

The Town houses a Publix Grocery Store, a Best Western Hotel, several synagogues, and its own 
Police Department (See Map 1: Critical Facilities).  The Surfside Police Department works to make 
their town a safe and enjoyable place to live, work, and recreate. 
 
  
 

68



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions 3-3 

Map 1: Critical Facilities 
 

 
 
3.2 ASSUMPTIONS  

69



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions 3-4 

 
3.2.1 Assumptions regarding emergency conditions 
Disasters impacting the Town will endanger public safety, damage property, and disrupt 
community services. The level of impact will vary in location, type, and magnitude. This 
variability will necessitate a flexible approach to implementation of the EOP.  
 
The concept of operations outlined in this plan assumes that a major or catastrophic 
emergency has occurred or is likely to occur, and the need exists for the immediate 
activation of this plan and mobilization of emergency response resources.  
 
Damage may be extensive and many areas could experience casualties, property loss, 
disruption of normal life support systems, and loss of economic, physical, and social 
infrastructures. 
 
Local emergency response personnel will experience casualties and damage to their homes 
and personal property, and will themselves be victims of the disaster. 
 
All public, private, and non-profit organizations that support this plan have developed 
emergency operations procedures to implement and allocate resources.  
 
If the emergency is major or catastrophic in nature, it is assumed that the County will 
request state assistance and the Governor will request activation of the National Response 
Framework and federal resources.  The Federal Emergency Management Agency will 
coordinate deployment of federal assets to the affected areas to provide assistance to local 
governments. 
 
In addition to state and perhaps federal assistance, the Town may request mutual aid from 
other political subdivisions throughout the state through the Statewide Mutual Aid 
Agreement. 
 
Disaster conditions may require the Town to fulfill emergency response and disaster 
recovery operations independently and without assistance for up to 72 hours following 
impact of the event.  
 
Resources may be inadequate to meet the needs of citizens within the Town.  Prioritization 
will be based upon life-sustaining need in accordance with the policies established in the 
EOP.  
 
Protective actions for the public could potentially involve thousands of individuals, and it is 
assumed the public will attempt to comply with all protective action instructions. 
 
Facilities, institutions, or locations that are required by statute or other standards to have 
emergency response plans and procedures will maintain and implement those plans.  
 
Following the impact of a disaster, significant modifications in normal Town agency 
operations will be necessary to assist disaster victims, restore community services, 
coordinate debris removal, and similar operations.  This may require Town agencies to 
employ temporary staff, use alternate facilities, or deliver services directly to damaged 
areas. 
 

70



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions 3-5 

3.2.2 Plan Implementation Assumptions   
Personnel with assigned emergency response duties will report to duty.  
 
The Town Emergency Operations Center will remain functional for the duration of the 
emergency response activities. 
 
The Town is able to maintain communications and control with key responding personnel 
and the County Emergency Operations Center. 
 
3.3 HAZARD IDENTIFICATION AND RISK ASSESSMENT 
The Town of Surfside is vulnerable to a host of hazards, which pose a risk to the residents 
and property.  The Town of Surfside is a participant in the Miami-Dade County Local 
Mitigation Strategy Steering Committee which has drawn from a broad range of sources, 
including federal, state, and local agencies, and private sector organization in identifying 
hazards and assessing risk and vulnerability to those hazards.  All hazards, which may 
impact the town, have been considered and those with the highest risk are discussed below 
and include: hurricanes, tornadoes, flooding, hazardous materials incidents (fixed facility 
and transportation), civil disturbances and mass migration events, terrorism, and biological 
epidemics.1 
 
The Town has drawn upon this analysis to identify the hazards threatening the jurisdiction 
and estimated the risk posed to the Town. The Town has also estimated the vulnerability of 
important facilities and systems to the identified hazards. In summary, the highest risk 
natural and man-made hazards that threaten the Town are listed below in descending order 
of risk (highest risk to lowest risk).  
 
3.3.1 Hurricanes and Tropical Storms 
Florida is one of the most vulnerable areas in the nation to the impacts of hurricanes and 
tropical storms. Hurricane season runs from June 1 through November 30.  Primary and 
secondary effects from a hurricane include: storm surge, high winds, and inland flooding. 
High winds and inland flooding pose the greatest hurricane related threats to the Town of 
Surfside.  These impacts can be widespread affecting people and property in areas far 
beyond the municipal boundaries. Environmental damage may be significant due to 
widespread destruction of vegetation, contamination of water systems, and vulnerable 
environments.  
 
Due to the fact that Surfside is a coastal community and has tidal water bodies within its 
geographic boundaries, it is vulnerable to storm surge.  The Town of Surfside’s vulnerability 
to high winds is increased due to the widespread distribution of homes, which were 
constructed prior to new building codes, which mandates higher wind loading standards.  
The town itself may also experience damage due to a high winds since none of the town-
owned or town-occupied facilities are built to withstand high winds.  Infrastructure is likely to 
be damaged or destroyed, communications system disrupted, and employees injured.  The 
National Weather Service calculates the probability of hurricane force winds impacting any 
given year for selected coastal cities.  The closest cities to Surfside are Miami Beach which 
has a 1 in 7 probability and Miami which has a 1 in 6 probability. Surfside, which is located 

                                                 
1 Additional hazards which are not considered high risk to the Town of Surfside and are, therefore, not 
incorporated in future discussions are nuclear power plants incidents, agricultural hazards, sinkholes, and 
earthquakes among others. 

71



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions 3-6 

between these two cities, has a probability that lies between these numbers.  In recent 
years, the Town has been impacted by Hurricanes Frances, Jeanne, and Wilma all of which 
caused damage to the towns residences and infrastructure. 
 
3.3.2 Tornadoes 
The most common, least destructive tornadoes in south Florida are warm season tornadoes 
which occur from May through August during afternoon thunderstorms.  The most 
destructive tornadoes occur between December and April, due to cold fronts from the north 
colliding with warm tropical air in the south.  Miami-Dade County as a whole is likely to 
experience approximately two touchdowns per year.  These may occur anywhere within the 
County including the Town of Surfside.  All areas of the county are subject to both 
vulnerability and maximum threat; however, less than one percent of the population and 
property can be expected to be impacted by any single tornado event.  Within the localized 
area of tornado touchdowns, people, property, facilities, and infrastructure damage can be 
severe.  The Town of Surfside’s vulnerability to high winds is increased due to the number of 
homes which were constructed prior to the new building codes.  The town itself may also 
experience damage as none of the town-owned or town-occupied facilities are built to 
withstand high winds.  The Town Hall has recently been refaced and should be structurally 
sound and able to withstand high winds.   
 
3.3.3 Flooding 
Much of Miami-Dade County is susceptible to localized flooding, particularly during the rainy 
season of June through October.  The county’s flat terrain causes extensive “ponding” due 
to the lack of elevation gradients to facilitate “run-off”.  Map 2 indicates the Town of 
Surfside’s Land Use. 
 
The Town of Surfside has an elevation of two to ten feet above sea-level and is subject to 
storm surge which is a serious hazard to the barrier island community.  Numerous repetitive 
loss properties have been identified by the National Flood Insurance Program and are being 
targeted for flood mitigation efforts.  Map 3 indicates the repetitive loss structures.  
 
3.3.4 Nuclear Power Plants 
The Town of Surfside is in the 50-mile Emergency Planning Zone (EPZ) for Turkey Point 
Nuclear Power Facility in Miami-Dade County. This EPZ includes the ingestion exposure 
pathway in which the population and animals are vulnerable to the long-term health effects 
associated with the ingestion of contaminated food and water. Property is less vulnerable 
because the distance from the facility is a sufficient buffer to protect the property and the 
town. The long-term environmental exposure to contaminants could still pose a threat. 
 
 
3.3.5 Hazardous Materials 
Hazardous materials incidents can occur anywhere there is a road, rail line, port, airport, or 
fixed-facility using, storing, or manufacturing hazardous materials. The Town of Surfside is 
at risk for an accidental chemical release. There is one fixed SARA Title III facility (See Map 
5) that contains a threshold quantity of extremely hazardous materials. There is also a high 
likelihood of an accidental hazardous material release associated with the transportation of 
chemical materials through the Town. 
 
Gaseous chemical substances pose the highest risk to individuals who inadvertently inhale, 
ingest, or come in contact with the fumes.  These substances, however, in time, will tend to 
evaporate and no longer pose a significant threat to people, property, or the environment. 

72



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions 3-7 

Solid and liquid hazardous materials may pose less of a hazard to people, but may be 
detrimental to property and the environment.  Vulnerable natural environments, water 
bodies, and groundwater systems may all be contaminated by hazardous materials and 
require extensive remediation. The entity itself is not likely to experience significant impacts 
from a hazardous materials event.  
 
 
3.3.6 Terrorism and Civil Disturbance  
The State of Florida is vulnerable to civil disturbances and terrorism as a result of its diverse 
population and close proximity to politically unstable nations.  Miami and Miami-Dade have 
been identified as a “high threat” area by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security and 
targeted for increased federal funding to reduce vulnerability and increase capability. 
Surfside is in close proximity to South Beach, downtown Miami, and to all area seaports and 
airports. There are several causeways that can be utilized to reach the barrier island.  
Although potential targets are numerous, high-density population centers and military 
installations are assumed to be at the highest risk. The Town of Surfside does not contain 
likely terrorist targets. Terrorism increases the likelihood of mass casualty and mass 
evacuation from a target area.  
 
For threats of armed violence and weapons of mass destruction, it is very likely that joint 
jurisdictional operational management of the incident will take effect, coordinated at the 
County level between the Miami Dade Police Department and the Florida Department of 
Law Enforcement (FDLE).  For any of these scenarios, some degree of state and federal 
involvement may occur. The lead federal agency may be FEMA, the Department of Justice, 
or the Department of Homeland Security. 
 
3.3.7 Transient Populations 
It is estimated that there are total of 7,627 homeless individuals and families with children 
within Miami-Dade County. This number includes people who are on the street as well as 
those who are in emergency shelters and transitional housing units.  There are no 
government agencies, profit or non-profit organizations to house the homeless in the Town 
of Surfside. 
 
3.3.8 Mass Migration 
Miami-Dade County has a history of mass immigration from the Caribbean basin, particularly 
Cuba and Haiti.  A large uncontrolled influx of immigrants has the potential of significantly 
disrupting the social and economic stability in Miami-Dade County by overwhelming the 
delivery of essential services such as medical response and public safety.  Mass 
immigration increases the need for law enforcement, detention, and mass care. These 
events are typically preceded by periods of increasing tension abroad, which are monitored 
by the federal government within civilian and military based agencies. 
 
3.3.9 Biological Epidemics 
Pandemic Influenza  
 
A flu pandemic occurs when a new influenza A virus emerges for which there is little or no 
immunity in the human population; the virus causes serious illness and spreads easily from 
person-to-person worldwide.  The World Health Organization (WHO) defines a pandemic as  
follows:  "A disease epidemic occurs when there are more cases of that disease than 
normal. A pandemic is a worldwide epidemic of a disease."  
 

73



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions 3-8 

Typically, the term pandemic is used in reference to an influenza pandemic due to the threat 
of such pandemics, but pandemics can occur in other disease types as well. 
 
The World Health Organization classifies the pandemic influenza threat into six phases, as 
follows: 
 

• Phase 1:  Animal influenza cases which do not present a threat to humans; 
• Phase 2:  Animal influenza cases which may present a threat to humans; 
• Phase 3:  Small clusters of animal transmission to humans; 
• Phase 4:  Verified cases of human to human transmission; 
• Phase 5: Human to human transmission in 2 or more countries in one region 

(pandemic imminent);  
• Phase 6: Pandemic - community-level outbreaks in more than one region.  
 

3.3.10 Coastal Oil Spills 
Oil spills can have a serious economic impact on coastal activities and on those who exploit 
the resources of the sea. In most cases such damage is temporary and is caused primarily 
by the physical properties of oil creating nuisance and hazardous conditions. The impact on 
marine life is compounded by toxicity and tainting effects resulting from the chemical 
composition of oil, as well as by the diversity and variability of biological systems and their 
sensitivity to oil pollution. 

In coastal areas some marine mammals and reptiles, such as turtles and their nests, may be 
particularly vulnerable to adverse effects from oil contamination because of their need to 
surface to breathe and to leave the water to breed.  Adult fish living in near shore waters 
and juveniles in shallow water nursery grounds may be at greater risk to exposure from 
dispersed or dissolved oil. 

The impact of oil on shorelines may be particularly great where large areas of rocks, sand, 
and mud are uncovered at low tide. The amenity value of beaches and rocky shores may 
require the use of rapid and effective clean-up techniques, which may not be compatible 
with the survival of plants and animals. 

If oil waste reaches the shoreline or coast, it interacts with sediments such as beach sand 
and gravel, rocks and boulders, vegetation, and terrestrial habitats of both wildlife and 
humans, causing erosion as well as contamination. Waves, water currents, and wind move 
the oil onto shore with the surf and tide. 

Beach sand and gravel saturated with oil may be unable to protect and nurture normal 
vegetation and populations of the substrate biomass. Rocks and boulders coated with sticky 
residue interfere with recreational uses of the shoreline and can be toxic to coastal wildlife. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

74



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions 3-9 

 
 
Map 2:  Town of Surfside Land Use Map 
 

 

75



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions 3-10 

 

76



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions 3-11 

Map 3: Surge Inundation Area2 
 

                                                 
2 Source:  http://gisims2.miamidade.gov/Cservices/CSMap.asp 

77



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions 3-12 

Map 4:  Flood Zones3  
 

 
 

                                                 
3 Source: http://gisims2.co.miami-dade.fl.us/MyNeighborhood/FloodMap.asp 

78



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions 3-13 79



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions   3-14  3-14 

Map 5: Town of Surfside Storm Water Station 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions   3-15

 Map 6:  Hazardous Materials Facility  

 

81



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Situation and Assumptions  3-16 

 
 
Table 2: Incidence of Possible 
Disasters 

Likelihood of 
Occurrence 

Vulnerability of  
 

 

Pe
op

le
 

 

Pr
op

er
ty

 
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

Th
e 

en
tit

y 
its

el
f 

 

Hurricanes and Tropical Storms H H H H H 

Tornadoes L H H M M 

Flooding H H H H H 

Nuclear Power Plants L L L L L 

Hazardous Materials  L L L M L 

Civil Disturbance/ Armed Violence L M M L M 

Mass Migration / Transient 
Populations 

M M M M M 

Terrorism L M M L M 

Biological Epidemics M H M M M 
      

H=High M=Medium L-Low 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

82



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Emergency Preparedness  4-1 

4.0 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS  
 
4.1 SUMMARY OF MUNICIPAL CAPABILITIES 
This section details the emergency response and disaster recovery capabilities of the Town.  
The Town has developed the basic capabilities, programs and resources to provide both 
daily and disaster response and recovery capabilities in compliance with the National 
Incident Management System and the County Comprehensive Emergency Management 
Plan.   
 
The Town of Surfside will respond to and recover from a major disaster through the aid of its 
municipal staffing, external contractors, and Miami-Dade County for most municipal services 
including emergency response services. The Town contracts with the Miami-Dade Fire 
Department for fire and emergency medical services.  Although the Town does not have 
direct management control over these resources, they will likely remain committed to the 
Town after a large-scale disaster. The Miami-Dade Fire Department operates in accordance 
with the National Incident Management System.   
 
Depending on the severity and magnitude of the disaster, additional County resources may 
be requested after a disaster.  Resources from adjacent municipalities may also be 
activated through the Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement.  Daily services will continue during a 
disaster, but the ability to augment those services will be based upon availability through 
County services. Additional community service/volunteer organizations and private vendors 
who contract with the Town may also be called upon to provide emergency services.  
 
All additional municipal services which may be needed during a disaster are detailed in 
Table 3. 
 
 

4.2 EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PROGRAM 
This plan also defines the Town of Surfside emergency preparedness program which 
includes hazard mitigation, emergency preparedness, and a training and exercise program.  
Roles and responsibilities for each component of the preparedness program have been 
assigned to individuals within the Town or contract staff supporting municipal operations.  All 
preparedness actions are guided by the Emergency Preparedness Committee.   
 
The Town will conduct emergency planning activities on an ongoing basis to ensure that the 
Emergency Operations Plan, as well as all supporting procedures, are maintained, and 
employees are regularly trained.  When directed by the Town Manager, the Town will 
exercise the vital components of the plan by conducting a Table Top Exercise to test the 
emergency plan.  Prior to the exercise, the Planning Committee will meet to assign roles and 
responsibilities of the Incident Management Team.   
 
4.2.1 The Municipal Emergency Preparedness Committee 
The Town has established an Emergency Preparedness Committee that is responsible for 
the planning, training, exercises, and maintenance of the improvement program needed to 
ensure the Town is ready to respond to emergencies. The Emergency Planning Committee 
operates on a continuing basis throughout the year.  
  
The EPC conducts meetings as needed to provide coordinated input from the policy level to 
operational level.  The EPC coordinates all preparedness activities and includes the Town 

83



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Emergency Preparedness  4-2 

Manager, Parks and Recreation Director, Building and Zoning Director, Public Works 
Director, Assistant Police Chief, Human Resources Director, Town Clerk, and the Finance 
Director.  The Assistant Police Chief is responsible for oversight of the EPC and 
preparedness activities as directed by the Town Manager.  
 
These individuals assure that all available resources and personnel are considered in the 
implementation of the Town’s preparedness program to all hazards. This is intended to 
improve the coordination of public and private preparedness programs throughout the 
jurisdiction. This Committee is responsible for the following activities:  
 

 Establish emergency plans and protocols including public communications and 
awareness 

 Establish the standards, guidelines and protocols necessary to promote 
interoperability among the jurisdictions agencies and reorganizations, as well as with 
adjacent jurisdictions and the county 

 Adopt standards, guidelines, and protocols for providing resources to requesting 
organizations, including protocols of the emergency organization in supporting 
incident operations conducted by the municipality 

 Set priorities for resources and other requirements for supporting field operations 
 Ensure participation in Miami-Dade County’s multi-agency coordination mechanisms, 

including the County EOC, mutual-aid agreements, incident information system, non-
governmental organization and private sector outreach, public awareness and 
information system, and mechanisms to deal with information and operations 
security 

 
4.2.2 Coordination of Preparedness Activities  
The preparedness program aims to ensure that all agencies and organizations with an 
assigned responsibility in the plan are capable of performing their responsibility.  The Town 
will maintain routine communication with the County and adjacent municipalities regarding 
emergency preparedness activities and when indicated participate in joint training and 
exercises with adjacent jurisdictions. The Town also actively participates in numerous 
countywide emergency preparedness organizations including the Local Mitigation Strategy 
Committee, which ensures effective coordination for all hazards and uniformity of response 
protocols and the Office of Emergency Management which coordinates countywide 
response activities.  
 
4.3 TRAINING 
The Town may offer in-house training for all NIMS-required courses for those personnel 
required to maintain a basic level of NIMS compliance.  Advanced or specialized training 
above this level is coordinated with Miami-Dade County as well as other regional entities.  
The Assistant Police Chief will work in concert with Miami-Dade County Office of Emergency 
Management on available training opportunities.   
 
NIMS requires that response personnel be classified as to their emergency response 
capabilities, as well as certified or licensed appropriately when necessary. It is the 
responsibility of department director to determine the level of training required by their 
respective personnel based on their roles and responsibilities during an emergency. As 
such, department directors are responsible for monitoring the NIMS Integration Center (NIC) 

84



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Emergency Preparedness  4-3 

(http://www.fema.gov/emergency/nims) for the development of any changes in the Federal 
Requirements.    All personnel are required to achieve the required training levels within one 
year of assignment to their positions.   
 
Upon completion of training, employees are responsible for forwarding copies of the training 
certificate to the Human Resources Department.  The Human Resources Department will 
store, archive and act as the records custodian for the training records, classifications, 
certifications and all other information relevant to emergency management/disaster related 
training for its staff and contractors.   
     
4.4 EXERCISES AND IMPROVEMENT PLANNING 
Exercises are designed to assess and evaluate emergency plans and capabilities.  
Exercises which may take the form of drills, table top exercises, functional exercises, or full 
scale exercises, are designed to test the range of hazards that may confront the Town.  The 
exercises are also designed to test all elements of the plan and build upon capabilities.  
Exercises should incorporate an all-hazard approach while ensuring that each hazard which 
faces the Town is addressed.  In addition to the Town wide exercises, each of the agencies 
participates in its respective agency’s routine drills to maintain skills and test equipment.   
 
Less complex exercises such as discussion based exercises will be conducted in house to 
the extent possible.  Complex exercises will be coordinated with Miami-Dade County as well 
as other regional entities.  The Town will participate in exercises that are countywide, 
regional or statewide, as resources are available.  Upon invitation, the Town may also 
participate in exercises sponsored by other jurisdictions.   Each agency or organization with 
assigned responsibilities will be responsible for ensuring staff participation in exercises.   
 
NIMS and HSEEP require that the emergency response capabilities be evaluated on an 
ongoing basis, as well as after each exercise and/or actual emergency.  Exercises form the 
first stage of the corrective action process.  After each exercise, all participants will be asked 
to participate in an after-action critique.  The lessons learned will be documented in an after 
action-report. The after-action report will identify corrective actions needed and assign 
responsibility and a schedule for implementation of the corrective actions.  When deems 
appropriate, the recommendations will be incorporated into the plan modifications, training 
curriculum, and future exercise evaluations.  All exercises will be conducted in compliance 
with the HSEEP requirements and address capabilities outlined in the Target Capabilities 
List.   
 
The Assistant Police Chief will be responsible for exercise coordination, scheduling 
evaluations, facilitating the involvement of all appropriate organizations, preparing the 
required written reports, and ensuring that identified corrective actions are incorporated into 
the Town’s preparedness improvement plan.  The Emergency Management Coordinator will 
also be the point of contact for Miami-Dade County for participation in countywide after-
action evaluations. 
 
4.5 PRE-EMERGENCY PUBLIC INFORMATION AND EDUCATION  
Pursuant to Policy Statement 6.3 in the Town’s Comprehensive Plan, the Town conducts an 
ongoing hurricane evacuation information program to make all residents aware of 
evacuation needs and plans.  The Town of Surfside implements a comprehensive, public 
information program on pre-emergency preparedness which includes public service 
announcements and press releases, as well as the maintenance of timely and updated 

85

http://www.fema.gov/emergency/nims�


Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Emergency Preparedness  4-4 

messages on cable channel 77 and the Town’s website, http://www.townofsurfsidefl.gov/. 
The goal of this program is to provide residents with the information that they will need to 
make and act on decisions affecting the protection of their lives and property.  In addition to 
emphasizing the need for residents to have a personal disaster plan, this information will 
provide guidelines and tips on the supplies and provisions necessary to ensure that 
residents and their households can be self-sufficient for at least (5) days following an event 
 
The Town of Surfside actively reaches out to the community through several public and 
business outreach efforts.   Residents can obtain disaster related information at the Miami-
Dade website, http://www.miamidade.gov/oem/hurricanes.asp.  The Surfside Gazette, a 
monthly newsletter, is mailed directly to residents.  The Town also participates and 
encourages citizens to participate in county and state sponsored preparedness events.   
 

86

http://www.townofsurfsidefl.gov/�
http://www.miamidade.gov/oem/hurricanes.asp�


Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-1 

5.0 ORGANIZATION AND STAFFING 
  
5.1 COORDINATION OF MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY RESPONSE 
OPERATIONS 
Coordination of field operations at an incident scene is the responsibility of the Incident 
Commander.  The Field Incident Commander will represent a member of the Town of 
Surfside Police Department.  The field Incident Commander will directly notify the Chief of 
Police of any incident which may potentially meet activation conditions due to the need for 
additional resources and/ or technical expertise.   
 
The Chief of Police, or his designee, is the Town’s Incident Commander and will determine 
the need to activate the town’s Emergency Operations Center and level of staffing support 
needed for each operational period.  Upon activation, the Command Staff will coordinate 
actions to provide additional resources to the incident scene, to allocate resources among 
multiple scenes, and to coordinate municipal operations with other jurisdictions, higher 
levels of government, and contractors providing disaster support resources.  All emergency 
operations are coordinated in accordance with the principles of the National Incident 
Management System. 
 
5.2 COORDINATION OF MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY OPERATIONS 
WITH PRIVATE SECTOR EMERGENCY OPERATIONS 
In accordance with NIMS, the State CEMP, and Miami-Dade County CEMP, the Town of 
Surfside coordinates primarily through the County Emergency Operations Center or upon 
activation, the Divisional Emergency Operations Center, to determine status of public and 
private utilities including ESF 1: Transportation, ESF 2: Communications, ESF 3: Public 
Works and Engineering, ESF 8: Health and Medical Care, ESF 12: Energy.  The Town will 
maintain a municipal liaison at the North Miami Divisional EOC to monitor and coordinate 
emergency response and recovery activities affecting the town, as needed.  For a list of 
Town Contract Service Providers, see Table 3.  
 
5.3 DAILY (NON-EMERGENCY) ORGANIZATION AND STAFFING 
The Surfside Town Commission is comprised of one Mayor, one Vice Mayor, and three 
Commissioners who are elected by the registered voters of the Town.  Elected positions, or 
"seats," are held for a period of two years, after which a new election is conducted.  The 
Town of Surfside government is comprised of nine departments.  Fire and Rescue services 
are contracted by Miami-Dade County Fire Department.  All other departments are managed 
and staffed by municipal employees and contract employees from private providers.  For an 
organizational layout of their daily operations, see Chart 1 on the following page.   

87



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-2 

 
Chart 1:   Town of Surfside, Organizational Chart for Daily Operation 

 
 
 

 
 

88



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing   5-3 

TABLE 3:  SERVICE PROVIDERS FOR THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE 

Method of Delivery  Contract 
In Place ( ) 

Responsible Entity or 
Entities 

 
Service 

Municipality Other 
Jurisdiction

Community 
Organization 

Private 
Sector 

  

Governance and continuity of 
government 

     Town Mayor, Town Vice 
Mayor, Town Commission, 
Town Manager, Town Clerk, 
etc. 

Law enforcement and security      Town of Surfside 

Traffic management and safety      Town of Surfside 

Hazardous materials 
emergency response  

     Miami-Dade County Fire 
Rescue  

Public health services       Miami-Dade County Health 
Department 

Emergency medical services      Miami-Dade County Fire 
Rescue  

Sewer services      Town of Surfside  

Electricity      Florida Power & Light 

Waste collection and disposal      Town of Surfside  

Emergency Debris Removal      Ashbritt Environmental 
Services, Inc. 

Debris Monitoring      Solid Resources, Inc. 

Telephone and hardwire 
communications 

     AT & T 

Emergency Information Hotline      Town of Surfside  

Communications for municipal      AT & T / Motorola 

89



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing   5-4 

TABLE 3:  SERVICE PROVIDERS FOR THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE 

Method of Delivery  Contract 
In Place ( ) 

Responsible Entity or 
Entities 

 
Service 

Municipality Other 
Jurisdiction

Community 
Organization 

Private 
Sector 

  

government 

Information management for 
municipal government 

     Atlantic Broadband 

Comprehensive planning and 
land use control 

     Building & Zoning 

Environmental protection and 
enhancement within the 
municipality  

     Miami-Dade County 
Environmental Resources 
Management 

Mass transit and transportation 
services 

     Miami-Dade County Transit 

Roadway repair and 
maintenance 

     Public Works Department 

Storm drainage system 
cleaning, repair and 
maintenance 

     Public Works Department 

Maintenance of municipally-
owned or operated facilities  

     Public Works Department 

Building construction inspection      Building Department 

Code enforcement      Building Department 

Social services to municipal 
residents in need (e.g., the 
homeless, displaced, elderly, 
etc.)  

     Town of Surfside / Miami-
Dade County Human 
Services 

Emergency animal care and 
control  

     Miami-Dade County Animal 
Services 

90



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing   5-5 

TABLE 3:  SERVICE PROVIDERS FOR THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE 

Method of Delivery  Contract 
In Place ( ) 

Responsible Entity or 
Entities 

 
Service 

Municipality Other 
Jurisdiction

Community 
Organization 

Private 
Sector 

  

Local Public Transportation      Miami-Dade County Transit 

Municipal government relations 
with business and industry; 
Economic development in the 
municipality  

     Miami-Dade County Capital 
Improvements 

Infrastructure Development:  
Roadway construction 

     Public Works Department 

Infrastructure Development:  
Drainage system construction 

     Public Works Department 

Infrastructure Development:  
Water system construction 

     Public Works Department / 
Miami-Dade Public Works 

Infrastructure Development:  
Sewer system construction 

     Public Works Department / 
Miami-Dade Public Works 

Infrastructure Development:  
Town roadway construction 

     Public Works Department 

Infrastructure Development:  
Town buildings construction 

     Public Works Department 

 
 
 

91



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-6

5.4 EMERGENCY RESPONSE ORGANIZATION 
 During an emergency activation, the Town’s organizational structure is modified in 
accordance with the National Incident Management System requirements. This structure is 
detailed in Chart 2 and Table 4 below.   Each municipal representative within the Town of 
Surfside has been assigned an organizational responsibility in the Emergency Response 
Organization. The Emergency Response Organization is responsible for staffing the 
Emergency Operations Center during emergency events and responding to the disaster 
situation.  Due to the limited number of employees available for emergency response duties, 
it is essential that each assigned individual be available to fulfill this assignment.  It is the 
long-term goal of the town to continue to train and develop additional personnel to augment 
the emergency response depth within the organizational structure.  
 

TABLE 4:  Municipal Emergency Organization 

Agency/position Emergency 
Preparedness 
Committee 
(EPC) 

Emergency 
Response 
Organization 

ICS Division 

Mayor  X Command  

Vice Mayor  X Command  

Town Manager X X Command  

Public Information Officer X X Command 

Town Attorney  X Command 

Public Works Director X X Operations 

Miami-Dade Fire Liaison X X Operations 

Police Department Designee X X Operations 

Town Clerk X X Planning 

Damage Assessment Team X X Planning 

Information Technology Specialist X X Planning 

Parks & Recreation Director X X Logistics 

Finance Director X X Finance 

Human Resources Director X X Finance 

    

92



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-7  5-7 

Chart 2: Town of Surfside Emergency Organizational Chart 
 

 

Incident 
Commander 
(Police Chief) 

Operations 
(Public Safety) 

Finance 
(Finance 
Director) 

 
Liaison 
 Officer 

 

Public Works  
(ESF 3) 

Public Works 
Director 

Public 
Health / Medical 
(ESF 6, 8, & 18) 

Miami-Dade 
County

Fire/HazMat 
SAR 

(ESF 4, 9, & 10) 
Miami-Dade 
County Fire

Safety & 
Security 
(ESF 16) 

(Public Safety) 

Force Account
(Human 

Resources 
Director) 

Planning 
(Town Clerk) 

Logistics 
(Parks & 

Recreation 
Director) 

 
Safety 
 Officer 

Information  
Officer  

(Water Dept.) 

Contracted 
Services 

(Purchasing & 
Contracts 
Manager

Damage 
Assessment  
(DA Team)  

Situation Unit/ 
Documentation 
(Town Clerk) 

 

Resources/Food 
& Water  

(ESF 7 & 11) 
Miami-Dade 

County

Energy (ESF 12/ 
Comm. (ESF 2) 

Miami-Dade 
 County 

Volunteers & 
Donations  
(ESF 15) 

Incident Action 
Planning 

(Special Projects 
Coordinator) 

Information 
Technology 

 

93



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-8

5.5  DAILY (Non Emergency) EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
RESPONSIBILITIES BY POSITION 
In advance of any disaster impacting the Town, numerous activities must occur in 
preparation of an impending situation.  Following are the assignment of responsibilities of 
the governing body and the Police Department during the preparedness phase. 
 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE TOWN COMMISSION DURING THE PREPAREDNESS 
PHASE 

 
 Formally adopt NIMS,  
 Approve the emergency management plan,  
 Approve pre-disaster and emergency contracts and vendor agreements for emergency 

services,  
 Approve state and federal emergency preparedness grants,  
 Approve mutual aid agreements, 
 Establish and update policies and local ordinances necessary to support Town agency 

development and implementation of the EOP, and its annexes,  
 Approve Miami-Dade County local mitigation program participation, 
 Maintain preparedness for meetings to endorse a Declaration of a Local State of 

Emergency and to promulgate emergency ordinances when necessary,  
 Approve protective actions including evacuations and shelter in place, curfews, and 

other protective policies,  
 Resolve policy issues which arise during the disaster event, which may include enacting 

emergency ordinances,  
 Provide budgetary support for the Town’s emergency preparedness, response, and 

recovery programs. 

 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF ALL EMERGENCY RESPONSE ORGANIZATIONS DURING 
THE PREPAREDNESS PHASE 

 
 Develop and maintain current detailed procedures, rosters, inventories, and similar 

documents necessary for implementation of the EOP, ESF, ICS Branch, as well as for 
conducting emergency operations for the Town EOC,  

 Ensure agency staff are adequately trained for implementation of the agency’s 
emergency response, disaster recovery operations, and the National Incident 
Management System,  

 Identify three employees to serve as ICS Section and/or ESF representatives to the 
EOC, with the authority to commit resources and execute policies, 

 Conduct practice exercises of the agency’s response and recovery operations on a 
regular basis,  

 Maintain the statewide mutual aid agreement to provide additional personnel and 
resources during disaster operations,  

94



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-9

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE ASSISTANT  POLICE CHIEF ACTING AS THE 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COORDINATOR DURING THE PREPAREDNESS PHASE 

 Support continuing efforts to lessen the vulnerability of the agency’s facilities, equipment, 
personnel and operations to the impacts of disasters through participation in the Town’s 
pre-disaster mitigation planning and programming, 

 Develop and maintain continuity of operations/continuity of government plans (COOP) to 
enable the agency to conduct its essential operations, including fulfilling responsibilities 
for EOP implementation, in the event of damage or disruption to the agency’s normal 
facilities or systems,  

 Take actions before and during a disaster to protect all vital records and documents 
within the agency’s control,  

 Develop and implement “family emergency preparedness programs” for agency staff in 
order to facilitate the participation of key staff in the implementation of the EOP,  

 Accurately maintain financial records regarding all financial expenditures and staff time 
records relevant to emergency response and disaster recovery operations,  

 Participate in post-event evaluations and critiques of exercises and the response to 
actual disasters to assist with appropriate modifications of the EOP,  

 Support and participate in the routine updating of the EOP and its annexes,  
 Cooperate with communications and requests for assistance from the Emergency 

Management Coordinator regarding the planning, training, exercise and implementation 
activities necessary to maintain the Town’s preparedness for disasters,  

 Coordinate, provide, and document training of incident management team members,  
 Activate the ESF upon the request of command. 

 

 
The Emergency Preparedness Coordinator may be assigned to perform the following 
responsibilities:
 Assess and conduct studies, report, regulations, and technical guidance relevant to the 

Town’s EM program, 
 Ensure compliance with NIMS, Miami-Dade County, the State of Florida and other 

regulatory and statutory bodies, 
 Coordinate with the Town’s PIO to conduct public information activities and outreach to 

the private sector within the municipality and or participating in Miami-Dade County’s 
public information and outreach programs, 

 Analyze staffing, equipment and facility resources to determine their adequacy for plan 
implementation and planning corrective actions where indicated, 

 Maintain the emergency plan and ensure maintenance of associated operational 
procedures by the responsible organizations, 

 Develop and/or implement municipal training programs in emergency plan 
implementation and in NIMS compliance, 

 Develop an exercise program for the municipality and ensure municipal participation in 
county, regional and statewide exercises,  

95



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-10

 Chair and support the Town’s Emergency Preparedness Committee (EPC), 
 Periodically evaluate the Town’s response capabilities and identify areas of shortfall,  
 Monitor and track the completion of NIMS training by all Town employees, contracted 

personnel, and volunteers, 
 Coordinate the Town’s efforts to classify and certify personnel and equipment used in 

the emergency operations, as well as tracking the licensure/certification status of 
personnel, 

 Ensure “after action” evaluations as well as the updating and maintenance of the Town’s 
“preparedness improvement plan”, 

 Evaluate and document the Town’s response and recovery capabilities in accordance 
with NIMS and the Target Capabilities List, 

 Represent the Town in Miami-Dade County’s inter-jurisdictional emergency 
preparedness efforts, 

 Maintain overall direction of the Town’s actions during preparedness, response and 
recovery operations to comply with the Town’s Strategic Plan,  

 Direct Town agencies to update and maintain the EOP and its annexes, and to maintain 
readiness to implement the EOP, 

 Participate as Primary Member of the Command Group,  
 Monitor and track completion of NIMS training requirements and town wide 

implementation compliance, 
 Participate in town, county, and regional all hazards exercises of the EOP, activation of 

the EOC and the operations of the Command. 

96



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-11

5.6  EMERGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES BY POSITION  
 
The following section describes the responsibilities assigned to each of the primary 
agencies and section chiefs during the response phase.  Staffing assignments are also 
listed in Table 4 in this section.  
 

COMMAND 
 
The Police Chief will function as the EOC’s Incident Commander.  The EOC Incident 
Commander will implement the policy directives of the Town Commission through direct 
coordination with the Section Chiefs. The EOC Incident Commander is responsible for the 
overall management of all incident activities, including the development and implementation 
of strategy, and for approving the ordering and release of resources.  The EOC Incident 
Commander ensures that all resources are allocated according to priorities set by Town 
policy and incident objectives detailed in the Incident Action Plan. 
 

 
 

 
A Police Department designee may be assigned to staff the North Miami Divisional 
Emergency Operations Center as the Town’s liaison, as needed. The Town Liaison will 
conduct the following tasks: 
 
 Coordinate response and recovery activities from the Town EOC to the County EOC,  
 Review resource requests and resource deployments with the County EOC and monitor 

status of missions, 
 Monitor status of response and recovery operations on the County level and notify the 

Command of emergency information and status items, 
 Monitor and forward County Incident Action Plans, Situation Reports, Flash Report, and 

Media Releases to the Town EOC’s Planning Section, 

Responsibilities of Police Department Designee as the Divisional EOC Liaison 

97



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-12

 Upon request of the Town command staff, coordinate with appropriate county ESF 
personnel to achieve response and recovery missions, 

 If conditions warrant, coordinate the implementation of the Continuity of Operations Plan.
 

Responsibilities of the Public Information Officer acting as Lead ESF 14 

 Conduct public information activities and outreach to the private sector,  
 Participate in Miami-Dade County’s public information and outreach programs, 
 Develop and coordinate emergency public information with the Miami-Dade County Joint 

Information Center (JIC), 
 Coordinate request for assistance and additional resources related to public information 

needs. 

98



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-13

 
OPERATIONS  

 
The Operations Section is responsible for the management of all operations detailed in the 
Incident Action Plan. The Operations Section activates and supervises operations, 
organizational elements, and staging areas in accordance with the incident action plan. The 
Operations Section Chief also assists in the formulation of the incident action plan and 
directs its execution. The Operations Section also requests or releases resources and 
recommends these to the incident commander. The Operations Section consists of four 
branches:  Safety & Security, Public Works, Public Health/Medical, and Fire/HazMat/SAR.  
Each of the branches is assigned a Branch Leader, either through Town personnel or 
through a representative of Miami-Dade who will monitor the incident objectives and 
ongoing mission assignments within the Branch.   
 
Each functional element in this section may be staffed if conditions warrant.  All functional 
elements within the Operations Branch report to the Operations Section Chief.  The 
Operations Section is responsible for coordinating tactical operations for an incident in 
support of the on scene incident commander.  This section also coordinates with the 
Planning and Logistics sections to request or release resources in support of tactical 
operations.  The Operations Section supports response activities which are occurring in the 
field (e.g., firefighting, search and rescue, mass care).  This section also determines 
resource shortfalls and requests additional resources from the Logistics Section.   
 

 
 
 

99



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-14

 
Responsibilities of the Police Department Designee acting as the Operations Section 
Chief 

 
 Coordinate mission requests, monitor and report status of all field response activities 

including: Law enforcement, Firefighting, Mass Care, Housing and Human Services, 
Public Health and Medical Services, Safety & Security, Hazardous Materials, and Urban 
Search and Rescue,  

 Coordinate Rapid Impact Assessment with the North Miami Divisional EOC, 
 Coordinate with the County to determine if a DRC is required; coordinate with the 

Logistics Section Chief to identify a suitable facility or location.    
 Activate the Citizen Hotline number,  
 Request or release resources in coordination with the Logistics Section Chief, 
 Identify need for volunteers; coordinate with the Logistics Section to review needs with 

the Divisional EOC, 
 Determine resource shortfalls and request additional resources to Logistics Section, 
 Report information about special activities, events, and occurrences to the Incident 

Command, 
 Conduct routine EOC briefings at each operational period. 

 
Responsibilities of the Public Works Director acting as Lead ESF 3   

 
 Coordinate the storm protection of all Town Buildings and town infrastructure, 
 Directs emergency operation related to municipal services, 
 Provides the required staff and equipment, through in-house resources, outside vendors, 

and mutual aid agreements to assist in emergency debris clearance (first push)and 
resume normal trash pick-up as soon as possible,   

 Supervise and coordinate the debris removal and debris monitoring contract activities 
including establishment of transfer sites, 

 Maintain and coordinate all financial records related to protective measures and debris 
management with the Finance Section Chief  to ensure FEMA reimbursement, 

 Coordinate the public assistance damage assessment and damage survey reporting 
process and ensure all town property and equipment are assessed and recorded,  

 Provide status information related to water mains, storm water flooding, sewer systems, 
traffic, and communications, power to the Operations Section Chief, 

 Coordinates and maintains usage of generators both stationary and mobile, 
 Coordinates storm water recovery efforts, 
 Coordinates restoration efforts for water services, storm water, sewer systems, traffic, and 

communications systems.

100



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-15

 
Debris Removal 
The Town has entered into an agreement with Ashbritt to conduct emergency debris 
removal and equipment upon request.  The Town has contracted with Solid Resources, Inc. 
to conduct debris monitoring.   
 
Responsibilities of the Miami-Dade Fire Liaison Acting as Lead ESF 4, 9, & 10 

 
A Miami-Dade Fire Liaison is assigned to staff the Fire Fighting, Urban Search and Rescue, 
as well as hazardous materials functional elements. Each functional element may be staffed 
at theTown EOC, the Divisional EOC and/or County EOC if conditions warrant. All functional 
elements within the Operations Branch, report to the Operations Section Chief.  
 
Fire Fighting and Urban Search and Rescue 
The Fire Fighting function will provide available resources for fire prevention and 
suppression actions within the Town during emergency response and disaster recovery 
operations, providing trained personnel and equipment for specialized services to protect 
lives and property throughout the response and recovery period, in cooperation with other 
Town Operations Section Chief. 
 
 Direct resources and personnel in the suppression of fires within the Town, 
 Provide paramedics and EMT’s for the provision of medical treatment and transport, 
 Provide personnel and equipment to support search and rescue operations within the 

Town,  
 Provide mutual aid in accordance with mutual aid agreements, 
 Update the Operations Section Chief with the status of fire fighting, emergency medical 

service, and search and rescue operations,   
 Attend Operations briefings and provide input to the Incident Action Plan for the next 

operational period. 
 
Hazardous Materials 
The purpose of the Hazardous Materials function is to provide resources in response to 
hazardous materials incidents occurring in or affecting the Town. 
 
 Detect, characterize, monitor and control significant hazardous materials releases within 

the Town or potentially impacting the Town,  
 Secure and coordinate support for the Town’s on-scene personnel responding to an 

incident involving hazardous materials, 
 Obtain technical information regarding hazardous materials and the risks they pose to 

emergency response personnel and the threatened public, 
 Advise EOC Command regarding the need for protective actions for the threatened 

public and the level of personal protection to be utilized by emergency response 
personnel,  

 Securing resources and assistance for post-exposure operations in the Town such as 
decontamination or environmental remediation, 

101



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-16

 Providing hazardous materials response personnel and resources to support operations 
at facilities involved in the Town’s emergency actions, such as providing 
decontamination services at the command post, 

 Securing services and expertise regarding hazardous materials needed by other 
emergency response and disaster recovery operations implemented by the Town, such 
as advising on the management of contaminated debris.

 
Responsibilities of the Police Department Designee Acting as Lead ESF 16 

 
 
 Directs emergency related operations of the Police Department, 
 Implement protective actions and executive orders including evacuation, re-entry, 

curfews, and quarantine actions,  
 Maintain a current list of traffic control points and related security activities for inclusion 

in the Incident Action Plan, 
 Coordinate traffic control and reentry measure with neighboring jurisdictions in order to 

facilitate reentry procedures for response and recovery personnel as well as returning 
residents and business owners, 

 Participates in initial rapid damage assessment and damage survey reporting, 
 Implement anti-looting measures and maintain perimeter control during the recovery 

phase, 
 Provide additional security personnel at critical facilities and vital incident sites including 

command post, distribution sites, staging areas, and others, 
 Coordinate the provision of additional law enforcement and security resources needed 

for response and recovery operations.  
 
 

102



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-17

 

FINANCE 
 
The Finance Section monitors cost expenditures to ensure that statutory rules that apply are 
met.  In particular, the Town must meet all requirements related to the Robert T. Stafford Act 
as administered by the Federal Emergency Management Agency.   
 
This section monitors all sources of funds, tracks and reports to Incident Command the 
financial “burn rate” as the incident progresses. This allows Incident Command to forecast 
the need for additional funds before operations are affected negatively. This is particularly 
important if significant operational assets are under contract from the private sector. Close 
coordination with the Planning Section and Logistics Section is also essential so that 
operational records can be reconciled with financial documents.   
 
The Finance Section must provide cost analysis data for the incident. It ensures that 
equipment and personnel for which payment is required are properly identified, obtain and 
record all cost data, and analyze and prepare estimates of incident costs.  
 
The Finance Section will ensure proper daily recording of personnel time and equipment 
usage time as they related to the individual mission tasking in accordance with the finance 
and administration emergency policies.   Personnel time records will be collected and 
processed for each operational period (as appropriate). These records must be verified, 
checked for accuracy, and posted according to existing policies. Excess hours worked must 
also be determined, for which separate logs must be maintained.  Under ICS, this unit 
handles injury compensation and claims.  
 

 
 
Responsibilities of the Finance Director Acting as the Finance Section Chief  

 
The Finance Director is assigned to staff the Finance Section Chief position. The Finance 
Section will conduct the following tasks: 
 Monitor and track all disaster response and recovery related expenditure of funds 

including personnel time and equipment in accordance with FEMA guidelines, 
 Maintain accurate tracking and documentation of acquired,  leased, and mutual aid 

equipment, supplies, and personnel, 
 Supply emergency funds to the incident command, 

103



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-18

 Provide regular status update to the Incident Commander for the status of financial 
resources, expenditures, and departments,  

 Provide technical assistance related to emergency purchasing procedures, and FEMA 
reimbursement requirements, 

 Provide input in the development of Incident Action Plans and assist in long-term recovery 
planning.

Responsibilities of the Human Resources Director Managing Force Account 
 
 Ensure that appropriate insurance coverage and employee policies are in place to 

support post disaster response and recovery operations,  
 Identify and coordinate the provision of additional human resources in support of 

response and recovery operations from within the town’s governmental structure, from 
external sources, through mutual aid, and/or volunteers, 

 Participates in the cost recovery process by tracking personnel hours and insuring that 
appropriate insurance claims are filed in a timely manner, 

 Assists in recovery planning and strategies.
 
Responsibilities of the Purchasing & Contracts Manager for Contracted Services  

 
 Coordinate with local jurisdiction on plans and supply sources, 
 Prepare and authorize contracts and agreements, 
 Interprets contracts and agreements; resolve disputes within delegated authority, 
 Establish contracts and agreements with supply vendors, 
 Complete final processing of contracts and send documents for payment, 
 Briefs Finance Chief on current problems, recommendations, outstanding issues, and 

follow-up requirements. 

104



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-19

 
 
PLANNING 

 
The Planning Section is responsible for collecting, evaluating, and disseminating all incident-
related data and information. The Planning Section conducts planning meetings, prepares 
the IAP and situation reports for each operational period.  The Planning Section may also 
develop, display, and/or distribute incident maps, status boards, databases, personnel 
contact information, operational schedules, and other critical information. The Planning 
Section participates in conference calls to ensure that pertinent information is captured and 
distributed and is also responsible for developing the demobilization plan. 
 
Incident Action Planning and Situation Assessment 
The Planning Section prepares the IAP and maintains many of the files and records that are 
developed as part of the overall IAP and planning function in compliance with NIMS.  The 
Planning Section will collect, process, and organize ongoing situation information; prepare 
situation summaries; and develop projections and forecasts of future events related to the 
incident. The Situation Unit also prepares maps and gathers and disseminates information 
and intelligence for use in the IAP. This unit may also require the expertise of technical 
specialists and operations and information security specialists. 
 
Information Documentation 
The Planning Section will maintain accurate and complete incident files, including a 
complete record of the major steps taken to resolve the incident; resolutions and executive 
orders, emergency declarations, IAP and Situation Reports, missions and resource tracking 
documents and logs, media releases, and all other incident related data.  Files will be 
maintained and stored for legal, analytical, and historical purposes.  
 
Demobilization 
The Planning Section develops the Demobilization Plan that includes specific instructions for 
all personnel and resources that will require demobilization. This unit should begin its work 
early in the incident, creating rosters of personnel and resources and obtaining any missing 
information as check-in proceeds.  Once the Demobilization Plan has been approved, it is 
distributed to appropriate response and recovery personnel in the EOC and at remote 
locations.  
 
 

105



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-20

 
 
Responsibilities of the Town Clerk Acting as the Information & Planning Section 
Chief  

 
The Town Clerk is assigned to staff the Planning Section Chief position. The Planning 
Section Chief will conduct the following tasks: 
 
 Develop Incident Action Reports development during each incident period, 
 Maintain status boards within the EOC, 
 Monitor Conference Calls and disseminate information to emergency responders as 

necessary, 
 Maintain message system and operational logs, 
 Log and distribute information provided by the Miami-Dade County EOC, the State EOC, 

neighboring jurisdictions, as well as other activated response or recovery locations 
throughout the Town EOC,  

 Develop regular situation reports summarizing the impacts of the event, the Town’s 
response and recovery operations and the open and completed missions and transmit to 
the Divisional EOC,   

 Compile information regarding rapid impact assessment, preliminary damage 
assessment, and damage assessment data, 

 Coordinate with Operations Section Chief in advance of operational briefings and 
document reports from Section Chiefs, 

 Collect, evaluate, and disseminate incident information and resources situation status, 
 Prepare the Incident Status Summary Form (ICS Form 209), 
 Maintain accurate, up-to-date incident files: forms, reports, emergency declarations, press 

releases, and all other official documents.  Incident files will be stored for post-incident 
use. 

 
 

106



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-21

Responsibilities of the Damage Assessment Team Managing Damage Assessment 
Process    

 
 Conduct damage assessments immediately following a disaster after Police and Fire 

have completed their “life-safety” process, 
 Determine the impacts on individuals and private businesses (Individual Assistance) 

and eligible facilities (Public Assistance), 
 Provide an estimate of the type and the extent of damages, following FEMA protocols, 
 Complete appropriate FEMA damage assessment forms for each type of assistance, 
 Determine estimated cost of damage to the town following the federal guidelines, 
 Verify and report  that the damage is beyond local response capability, 
 Review all work product for consistency with FEMA requirements and ensure quality 

control procedures are followed 
 
 
 

Responsibilities of the Information Technology Specialist  
 
 Coordinate with Planning and PIO for information to update the Town’s website with 

recovery information such as PODs, Situation Reports, locations of Disaster 
Recovery Centers, important numbers, closures,  

 Provide network maintenance, including coordinating and setting access security, 
setting up and managing data replication and data transformation activities, 
documenting system configuration, excluding HTE and Police Department, 

 Responsible for analyzing, and modifying computer systems, as needed, excluding 
HTE and Police Department, 

 Restore IT systems processing capabilities to normal operations at the primary 
location or the new location, 

 Make certain coordination with other public and private organizations is conducted, 
as it relates to the Town's internal network, 

 Responsible for the coordination and support of all network, telephone, copier, and 
fax technology, excluding HTE and Police Department, 

 Provide technical support to the Town staff; and insure compliance with network, 
procedures, and standards. 

 
 
 

107



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-22

 
LOGISTICS  

 
The Logistics Section coordinates and supports the Town resource management 
process that coordinates the procurement of goods and services, and directs the 
deployment of emergency resources. The Logistics Section Chief reports to Command. 
The Logistics Section contains the following Emergency Support Functions: 
Transportation (ESF 1), Communications (ESF 2), Resource Support (ESF 7), Food and 
Water (ESF 11), Energy (ESF 12), Volunteers and Donations (ESF 15), and Business & 
industry (ESF 19). Due to the lack of municipal staffing, each of these ESFs may not be 
staffed individually but coordinated centrally by the Logistics Section Chief.   As 
conditions warrant, the Logistics Section Chief may determine to augment staffing in 
each of the ESFs. 
 
The mission of the Logistics Section is to coordinate and support the resource 
management process that plans, implements, and controls the efficient, effective flow of 
goods, services, and related information from the point of origin to the point of 
consumption. It acts as an agent on behalf of other municipal agencies for pre-event and 
operational sourcing, contracting, procurement, receipt, storage, handling, security, 
accountability, inventory, deployment, issue and distribution, recovery reutilization and 
disposition, of expendable and non-expendable resources and services in support of 
emergency management operations. Effective logistics management makes certain that 
all functions are executed in a unified manner in order to reduce costs, ensure 
appropriate support actions, and decrease delivery time. 
 
The Logistics Section also coordinates pre-event facility selection and building services 
of temporary response and recovery sites including staging areas, Disaster Recovery 
sites, warehousing operations, Points of Distribution and other locations as needed.  
 
The Logistics Section may obtain resources for internal supplies, contractor resources, 
private vendors, local mutual aid, or through the Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement which 
is coordinated through the County Emergency Operations Center. 
 

 
 

108



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-23

Responsibilities of the Parks & Recreation Director acting as Logistics Section 
Chief 

 
 Maintain municipal equipment, facilities and supplies, 
 Monitor resource status during response and recovery operations, 
 Identify resource shortfalls in coordination with Operations Branch, 
 Provide management and oversight of the following functions: resources, 

communications, and energy, 
 Identify additional personnel to staff emergency response and recovery operations, 
 Identify resources to support field response and recovery operations through mutual 

aid, private vendors, volunteers, or donation resources, 
 Support the acquisition and management of resources, 
 Document and track all resource requests, staging, and deployments; provide 

documentation to Finance Section Chief in accordance with financial procedures,  
 Coordinate the provision of food and water to all emergency personnel at emergency 

operating sites, 
 Coordinate communication assets from government, volunteer groups, the 

telecommunications industry, federal and state agencies, and private vendors to meet 
all response and recovery communication needs, 

 Support the rapid restoration of energy system with consideration to priority locations, 
 Once local resource capabilities have been exhausted, coordinate mutual aid and 

private vendor resource needs through the proper resource request procedure and 
maintain documentation.  

 

Responsibilities of Police Department Designee acting as Volunteers and 
Donations Coordinator  

 

 The Police Department’s CERT Coordinator will coordinate the utilization of the 
CERT Team members in disaster response and recovery efforts (pre-response or 
convergent), 

o The CERT Team will coordinate activities prior to a disaster to help 
residents prepare for a disaster, i.e., by assisting residents with the 
installation of hurricane shutters, 

o The CERT Coordinator will assist assignment of volunteers, 

 Coordinate with the North Miami Divisional EOC regarding the need for additional 
volunteers and any required skill sets.  

 

109



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Organization and Staffing  5-24

 
 

Responsibilities of Public Works Designee acting as Energy (ESF 12) and 
Communications (ESF 2) Coordinator  

 
 The Public Works Department will be responsible for securing fuel supplies and 

coordinating FPL’s response to electrical power outages.  

 Coordinate with the North Miami Divisional EOC to support the rapid restoration of 
energy system with consideration to priority locations 

 Identify and allocate all local government interim energy sources to support 
continuation of critical services, governmental restoration efforts, and public 
buildings. 

 Identify personnel who have the technical expertise to acquire and implement 
alternate emergency communications. 

   Coordinate communication assets from government, volunteer groups, and private 
vendors to meet all response and recovery communications needs.  

 Ensure communication is established with other governmental agencies, 
shelters, feeding sites, points of distribution, staging areas, and other vital recovery 
sites. 

Fuel Resources 
The Town maintains three fuel storage tanks.  One tank is capable of holding 2500 
gallons of gasoline.  The remaining two contain diesel, one of which holds 1000 gallons 
and the other holds 500 gallons.  The Town contracts with Dagam Oil Company for its 
fuel supplies.  
 
 

Responsibilities of Miami Dade Division EOC for Resources (ESF 7) and Food & 
Water (ESF 11) 

 
 
The Town of Surfside has no supplies of food or water to distribute to citizens.  The 
Town will coordinate with the North Miami Division Emergency Operations Center for the 
provision of supplies and will consider augmenting resources through private vendors 
and donated items as resources permit.  

110



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Concept of Operations  6-1 

6.0 CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS  
 
6.1  EVENT RECOGNITION AND PLAN ACTIVATION  
In the State of Florida, the County Warning Point is the central location for the collection and 
dissemination of warnings and threats which are monitored at various higher levels of 
government.  Following is a listing of threat and hazard monitoring and recognition sites 
where information is collected and disseminated from listed by hazard:  
 
Hazard  Source of Information  

Tropical Storms and Hurricanes NOAA, National Hurricane Center 
Tornado NOAA, National Weather Service Office 
Flooding NOAA, River Forecast Office / Weather 

Service Office 
Hazardous Materials (fixed) State Warning Point 
Hazardous Materials (transportation) State Warning Point 
Civil Disturbance Florida Department of Law Enforcement 
Terrorism  Federal Bureau of Investigations and the  

Department of Homeland Security 
Epidemics and Biological Agents Department of Health  
Wild land Fires U.S. Forestry Service   

 
The Miami-Dade County Police Department’s Communications Center is designated as the 
official Warning Point for the Town of Surfside. Notifications of watches, warnings, or the 
occurrence of significant events will be received at the Warning Point through the Miami-
Dade County EOC.  Bulletins and advisories from the National Weather Service are 
received via the Emergency Satellite Communications (ESATCOM), Weather Service 
Satellite System, E911 System, radio, telephone, municipal Public Safety Answering Points 
(PSAPs), and the general public.  These significant incidents may include but are not limited 
to the following: 
 

a.  Any incident which may require a substantial evacuation and/or relocation of a 
given area, 

b.  Any event posing a potential threat for a mass casualty incident, 
c.  Any weather related watch or warning advisory, 
d.  Any formation of tropical weather systems, 

111



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Concept of Operations  6-2 

 
e.  Any incident that closely or significantly blocks major roadways within the County, 
f.  Any large or multiple structure fire, 
g.  Any prolonged shutdown of public utilities, 
h.  Any incident where public resources within Miami-Dade County are being deployed 

out of the County except for emergency services mutual aid, 
i.  Any event posing a major environmental threat, 
j.  Any potential or actual act of terrorism. 

 
6.2 PUBLIC WARNING AND EMERGENCY INSTRUCTION  
In the immediate response phase to localized disaster, the onsite Incident Commander has 
the authority to direct protective actions including evacuation or in-place sheltering.  The on-
site Incident Commander will notify the Town Manager of the incident and protective actions 
taken. The Town Manager may direct the Public Information Officer to warn the public that 
they are endangered and what actions are to be taken.  
 
In the event of advance warning of a widespread potential threat, the Town Manager, in 
consultation with key staff, will determine the need for protective actions within the Town 
and coordinate implementation with the Operations Section Chief and Public Information 
Officer.  In the event that multi-jurisdictional action is required, the Town will coordinate 
protective action decisions with the impacted jurisdictions and the Miami-Dade County EOC. 
 
6.3 INITIAL FIELD RESPONSE ACTIONS  
The Incident Command System will be used to manage and coordinate field response 
operations.  The incident may be controlled by local emergency responders or with other 
agencies through the mutual aid system.  If the resources available at the field response 
level are not sufficient to mitigate the situation, the Incident Commander may request, 
through appropriate channels, that the EOC be activated to support the field operations. 
 
Response to an incident by single discipline agencies (i.e. fire, law enforcement, EMS) will 
utilize a single Incident Commander within the ICS structure. As the incident progresses to 
include multiple jurisdictions and disciplines, a Unified Command (UC) will be used to the 
extent possible, and as deemed necessary. 
 
During a single discipline response to an incident, the first on-scene emergency responder 
with management responsibilities will take the necessary steps to establish an Incident 
Command Post (ICP), report a scene size-up, activate the appropriate ICS organizational 
elements required for incident management, delegate authority within the ICS organizational 
structure, and develop incident objectives on which subsequent incident action planning will 
be based. 
 
6.4 ACTIVATION OF THE MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY OPERATIONS 
CENTER (EOC) 
The Town of Surfside will activate its Emergency Operations Center and its Incident 
Management Team to respond to the disaster needs of the community.  Numerous 
conditions may warrant activation prior to an event, during an event, or once an incident has 
already occurred.   When an emergency or disaster event threatens the Town and/or the 

112



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Concept of Operations  6-3 

Miami-Dade County EOC has been activated, the Town Incident Commander will consider 
the need to activate the Town EOC and the Town’s Emergency Operations Plan.   
 
Depending on the magnitude and complexity of the event, for any level of EOC activation, 
the Town Incident Commander may direct personnel to activate and deploy one or more 
individuals to the EOC to initiate operations.  When determining which elements of the plan 
to activate, the Town Incident Commander will consider potential resource needs, 
community impact, and public safety. 
 
Conditions for EOC Activation: 
 

1. Various natural disasters and terrorism threats may provide advance warning either 
through monitoring systems or through verbal notification.  The Town Manager, in 
coordination with the public safety organizations, will evaluate the advance threat 
conditions and determine if EOC activation is warranted.  

2. Whenever an emergency situation, a special situation, or event in the jurisdiction 
requires inter-agency coordination for additional resources, the Town Manager may 
decide to activate the Incident Management Team.  The team will ensure that the 
decision-making process is adequately coordinated.  

3. If multiple scenes are developing throughout the jurisdiction, which cannot be 
adequately coordinated from a single field command post, the Town Manager may 
activate the Incident Management Team.     

 
When it appears that an incident will escalate beyond the capabilities of the Town’s 
resources, the Town EOC will be activated to provide a coordinated response among all 
agencies with jurisdictional authority or functional responsibility.  These response actions 
can include:  
 

 Identifying critical resource needs and report them to EOCs and/or multi-agency 
coordination entities, 

 
 Verifying that the notification of all responding organization was successfully 

implemented, 
 Ensuring full operational capability of the EOC equipment, communication systems, 

information tracking systems and supplies, 
 Verifying rosters, equipment and vendor inventories, procedures are up to date, 
 Establishing communication with Miami-Dade County EOC, field command posts, 

emergency organizations, and other activated emergency facilities, 
 Deploying liaison to the Miami-Dade County EOC and other vital response sites such 

as staging areas, 
 Placing additional public and private sector resources and personnel on standby 

such as, but not limited to, Town personnel, debris management contractors, debris 
monitors, facility managers with whom the Town may have agreements for 
emergency lease space, suppliers of food and fuel for emergency workers, vendors 
with whom the Town has emergency agreements for equipment and supplies such 
as supplemental office equipment, machinery, generators, and Town Public Works 
equipment and vehicles, 

113



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Concept of Operations  6-4 

 Obtaining incident status information, potential impact on persons and property, 
deployed resources and personnel, damaged infrastructure, and other important 
information, 

 Coordinating information with responding units and the Miami-Dade County EOC, 
 Determining the need and implement procedures to declare a State of Emergency 

and notify the Miami-Dade County EOC, 
 Coordinating with the North Miami Divisional EOC for additional resources, if 

needed, for performing a “rapid impact assessment” to define the impact of the 
event, prioritize operations and coordinate the information with the Miami-Dade EOC, 

 Preparing and distribute an initial “incident action plan” to prioritize and control the 
Town’s response operations for the initial operational period. Managing response 
operations through an IAP is a NIMS requirement, 

 Ensuring that short-term emergency recovery is coordinated to assist in the transition 
to full recovery operations. 

 

6.5  CLASSIFICATION OF EMERGENCIES AND DISASTERS  
According to Florida Statutes 252.35(a), disasters are classified as follows:  
 

 Minor Disaster: Any disaster that is likely to be within the response capabilities 
of local government and results in only minimal need for State or federal 
assistance 

 Major Disaster: Any disaster that will likely exceed local capabilities and require 
a broad range of State and federal assistance. The Federal Emergency 
Management Agency will be notified and potential federal assistance will be 
predominantly recovery oriented 

 Catastrophic Disaster: Any disaster that will require massive State and federal 
assistance, including immediate military involvement. Federal assistance will 
involve response as well as recovery needs 

 
6.5.1  Levels of Municipal EOC Activation  
Consistent with the County’s EOC levels of activation, the Town has established three levels 
of activation:  
 
Level 3:  General day to day operation with a heightened awareness during hurricane and 
wildfire seasons.  
 
Level 2:  Threat identified and some resources are directed toward intelligence gathering.  
The EOC may be partially activated in expectation of an impending event or in response to 
an event.  The Town’s EOC Incident Commander may determine the operational times and 
the necessary staff needed at the EOC.  This level may also be referred to as a “partial 
activation”   
 
Level 1:  This is a full activation and pre-identified staffing will be required in the EOC.  The 
operation is carried out for a full 24 hours.  Operational periods are established by the 
EOC’s Incident Commander.   
 
The Town’s Emergency Operations Center may be activated directly to level 2 or level 1 
based upon operational needs.  The Town’s EOC may be activated if an incident is not site 
specific (i.e. pandemic outbreaks), the incident is extremely large and involves multiple ICS 

114



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Concept of Operations  6-5 

organizations, or there are multiple incidents that are being handled by multiple incident 
command posts. Further, the plan states that the level of activation will take into 
consideration the levels of activation of the EOCs of adjacent jurisdictions and that of Miami-
Dade County.  
 
6.6  OPERATIONS OF THE EOC  
Notification and Mobilization for EOC Operations 
Upon a decision to implement the EOP and activate the Town EOC, it will be the 
responsibility of the Human Resource Department to notify, as indicated by the level of 
activation, key support staff and the contact individuals from the responding agencies.  The 
agency contact is responsible for notification of all necessary personnel in their agency or 
organization to ensure 24 hour staffing.  
 
Following notification, the Assistant Chief of Police will mobilize to the Town EOC and 
initiate operations. In all cases, following activation of the Town EOC and mobilization of 
personnel, the Miami-Dade County Warning Point will be informed of the activation.  
 
6.6.1 Functions of the Municipal EOC 
The staff members assigned to their respective ICS Sections within the EOC as described in 
Section 5.6 (Emergency Responsibilities by position) are responsible for the following 
functions:  
Command  

 Coordinate the receipt, processing and delivery of public information and emergency 
instructions relevant to the municipality 

 Make policy decisions regarding Town wide emergency response and disaster 
recovery operations, 

 Planning and prioritizing Town wide response and recovery operations, 
 Assigning a liaison, whenever needed or upon request, to emergency response or 

disaster recovery facilities activated by Miami-Dade County, the State of Florida or 
federal agencies for operations affecting the Town. 

Operations 
 Coordinate municipal emergency operations with those conducted by adjacent 

municipalities, Miami-Dade County, the State of Florida and the federal government. 
 Maintaining communication and coordination with the North Miami Divisional EOC, if 

activated, as well as the EOCs of other municipalities, if activated, directing Town 
agency operations accordingly, 

 Directing or supporting any other such operations by or within the Town for 
emergency response or disaster recovery. 

 Monitor and assess an emergency or disaster to anticipate needed response and 
recovery operations, 

 Ensuring that appropriate documentation regarding response and recovery 
operations is maintained by all Town agencies. 

115



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Concept of Operations  6-6 

 
Logistics 

 Coordinate and prioritize resource support operations for municipal field units at 
incident scenes and for disaster victims within the jurisdictions.  

 Coordinate the activation, operation, and deactivation of any other emergency 
facilities established by the municipality. The EOC will also coordinate municipal 
operations related to emergency facilitates activated with the jurisdiction by Miami-
Dade County, the State of Florida or the federal government,  

 Secure resource support for Town operations at the incident scene from other Town 
agencies, Miami-Dade County, the State of Florida, federal agencies and/or adjacent 
jurisdictions. 
 

6.6.2 Response Actions in the EOC 
Command  

 Identify the point or time when emergency operations will be considered complete, 
and the demobilization and deactivation process can be initiated, 

 Cooperate with the implementation of multi-jurisdiction protective orders including 
curfews, public health actions, immunizations and others. 

Operations 
 Coordinate search and rescue operations, 
 Receive and process requests for assistance or support from field command staff or 

other organizational units with the municipal EOC, 
 Continue coordination activities with adjacent jurisdictions EOCs and the North 

Miami Divisional EOC, if activated, including filing of a situation report with the 
County EOC as requested,  

 Implement anticipated and preplanned response actions, such as emergency debris 
removal from roadways (refer to Debris Management Plan for further detail), 
providing public information, establishing security for damaged or evacuated 
neighborhoods. 

Planning 
 Continue development of the IAP on the schedule established at the beginning of the 

emergency response period,  
 Provide for municipal representation to the joint preliminary damage assessment 

process which is conducted cooperatively by county, state and federal damage 
assessment teams following a major disaster. 

 Maintain a continuing process of information exchange regarding the event, its 
impacts, and the status of response organizations, 

 Maintain continuing flow of accurate, consistent and timely public information. 
Logistics 

 Conduct resource management activities in accordance with the resource 
management annex to the plan, 

116



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Concept of Operations  6-7 

 
Finance  

 Document ongoing operations, personnel time, and expenditures in accordance with 
the procedures giving in financial management annex or the plan 

 
6.6.3 Emergency Supplies 
The Town Logistics Branch in coordination with Miami-Dade County ESF 6, ESF11, and 
ESF 15 are responsible for the delivery and provision of supplies and services (food, water, 
shelter, and clothing) to residents. The Town of Surfside EOC will support these efforts by 
identifying volunteers and donations from area businesses to meet the needs of the 
residents. The American Red Cross conducts door-to-door assessments of the areas 
affected by the event identifying residents’ unmet needs. Other unmet needs reported to 
Town EOC or law enforcement should be tracked and forwarded to ESF 6 and the American 
Red Cross. The process to meet the identified needs is first to meet the basics of food, 
shelter, and clothing. The other needs are evaluated as to fairness, ability to provide service 
to all who need it, cost, alternative means to meet need, and so forth.  Life-safety issues 
always take precedence. 
 
6.6.4 Locations of Municipal Primary and Alternate EOCs 
 

 The primary Emergency Operations Center is located in the Town of Surfside 
Town Hall Building, 9293 Harding Avenue, Surfside, FL 33154 

 The secondary EOC is located at the North Miami Divisional EOC. 
 The development of a more permanent EOC is planned in the future.   

 
6.7 EMERGENCY FACILITIES  
6.7.1 Points of Distribution 
The Town will utilize the Miami-Dade County, Point of Distribution (POD) The PODs will 
provide life sustaining emergency relief supplies to the residents of Surfside impacted by a 
major disaster, widespread utility outages, or other critical incident.  The PODs will be 
established by Miami Dade County and the County will provide personnel and resources to 
maintain them throughout the disaster event.  Hours of operation will be determined by the 
County.  The PODs and all emergency response operations will be managed in compliance 
with Miami-Dade County standards and the National Incident Management System.  
Historically, the County has designated Haulover Park, but this location is subject to change 
at the discretion of the county.  The Logistics Section Chief will coordinate identification of 
suitable locations with the Divisional EOC.  Dissemination of information regarding PODs 
will include a combination of County media releases, the Town’s Cable Channel 77, the 
Town’s website, and hotline number.     (See Section 5.2.6) 
 
6.8  Public Information During and After Emergencies 
 
The ESF 14 staff is located in the Town’s EOC and will disseminate information to the media 
and the public on response and recovery actions taken by the Town’s Emergency 
Management Team.  ESF 14 provides the media with an overview of the emergency 
situation at the Town level, and expects the media’s interest in the event to be consistent 
with, or exceed, citizens’ needs.  Should the scope of information that must be provided to 
the media exceed the resources of the Town, the PIO will coordinate and request assistance 

117



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Concept of Operations  6-8 

from the Joint Information Center (JIC) of the Miami-Dade County EOC.  All Town of 
Surfside emergency and disaster-related information will be disseminated through ESF 14 at 
the Town’s EOC, and will also be provided to the County JIC. 
 
The Town’s ESF 14 will provide updates and briefings to the media on a regular basis 
and/or schedule press conferences as deemed necessary.  Updates will also be broadcast 
on the Town’s Cable Channel 77 and posted on the Town’s website.  The Police 
Department will also activate a citizen hotline which is (305) 993-1070.  All media personnel 
are required to wear/display official press credentials while present at the EOC.  Media 
access to the EOC Operations room will not be permitted.  
 
6.9 Deactivation of Emergency Operations Center 
It is the responsibility of the Incident Commander to authorize downscaling and/or 
deactivation of the Emergency Operations Center.  This decision will be coordinated with the 
general staff and executive team. 
 

 Personnel will be notified of a reduced activation level or deactivation at the earliest 
convenient time, but preferably this decision will be incorporated during the Incident 
Action Planning Process for the next operational period.  

 The Operations Section Chief is responsible for notifying all EOC personnel of the 
change in staffing requirements and operational hours.  

 The Operations Section Chief will also notify the field Incident Commanders, County 
EOC, and neighboring jurisdictions. 

 The Finance Section Chief will ensure that all documentation regarding operations, 
personnel time, and emergency expenditures is complete and obtained by all 
response personnel. 

 The Logistics Section Chief will ensure that all equipment and supplies are 
demobilized and tracked until they reach their final destination. 

 The Planning Section Chief will ensure that all documentation has been stored, that 
all tracking documents and databases are properly duplicated and stored, and that 
an after action critique is scheduled, conducted, and an after action report is 
prepared.  

 The Incident Commander should evaluate the need for incident stress debriefing for 
all personnel and coordinate with the Miami-Dade County EOC for CISD counseling 
services. 

 

118



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Recovery  7-1 

7.0 RECOVERY 
 

7.1 RECOVERY OPERATIONS OVERVIEW 
The Town of Surfside is dedicated to returning the community to pre-disaster conditions. The 
Town will coordinate and cooperate with County, State and Federal agencies to obtain the 
necessary support to implement mitigation measures to protect and preserve the lives of 
residents and property of the Town.  This recovery phase occurs simultaneously with the 
response phase. As first responders are engaged in life safety missions, the recovery staff 
are planning for short-term and long-term recovery activities.  Once the life threatening 
response activities have been completed and the threat to the Town has diminished then 
recovery activities become the primary focus of emergency management.  
 
The Town’s Incident Management Team will coordinate recovery and disaster assistance 
efforts within the Town, and is responsible for gathering the assessed needs of the 
community, and coordinating with other agencies and organizations to meet those needs.  
The Town Manager is the point of contact for the beginning of the recovery process for 
County, State and Federal agencies.  The PIO will provide recovery information to the public 
via media releases (sent to print and broadcast media, i.e., newspapers, radio, and television) 
and press conferences coordinated with the County Joint Information Center.  Information will 
also be made available for posting on or at the Town, County, and American Red Cross web 
sites, the Disaster Recovery Centers, community bulletin boards, community forums, and 
town meetings. 
 
Recovery operations consist of short-term and long-term recovery activities. While recovery 
actions begin during the response phase, it is difficult to evaluate when the recovery phase is 
complete. Activities which may be in the short-term recovery period are: 
 

 FEMA required Damage Assessment 
 Emergency Debris Removal which opens one lane of traffic for all roads 
 Restoration of utility services including power, water, and sewer services 
 Restoration of critical infrastructure and critical facilities 
 Re-supply of fuel 
 Installation of emergency generators at critical facilities 
 In coordination with the County EOC, identify facilities which may be utilized for 

response and recovery operations such as Disaster Recovery Centers, storage sites, 
temporary housing sites, Points of Distribution, etc. 

 Evaluate the need for long-term housing within the community and coordinate with 
county, state, and federal officials to meet victim housing needs  

 Evaluate critical infrastructure and structures which may be eligible for hazard 
mitigation funding 

 Evaluate unmet needs among the victims in the community,   
 Support outreach efforts to publicize the availability of federal disaster funding 

including Individual Assistance and SBA loans 

119



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Recovery  7-2 

 
 
7.2 PRELIMINARY DAMAGE ASSESSMENT 
 

 The agencies responsible for preliminary damage assessment are Florida Power and 
Light, Miami-Dade County Traffic Engineering, Miami-Dade County Water and Sewer, 
Miami-Dade County Fire Department,  the Town of Surfside Public Works Division, 
and the Town of Surfside Parks and Recreations Department.  All preliminary damage 
assessments are coordinated through the Town EOC and County EOC.  

 The Planning Section Chief is responsible for the overall coordination of the 
assessment and gathering of information related to public infrastructure for 
presentation to the Miami-Dade County EOC.  

 Miami-Dade County is responsible for the assessment of county roadways, including 
downed traffic signals, stop signs, and damaged sidewalks, sewage collection system, 
pumping facilities, and lift-stations. 

 The Public Works Department is responsible for the assessment of Town-owned 
infrastructure such as storm drainage and irrigation systems, Town vehicles and 
special equipment, and culverts or ditches that have suffered erosion or collapse.   

 The Town Building Division is responsible for assessing habitability of affected 
structures.  

 The Town is responsible for the assessment of Town streets, storm drainage, 
irrigation systems, parks and recreational facilities, and debris clearance within Town 
limits, and coordinating all activities with the EOC. 

 Florida Power and Light is responsible for the assessment of their electrical utilities 
and coordinating activities within the Town of Surfside. 

 The Town of Surfside  Police Department is responsible for public safety, security 
issues, and coordinating activities with the Town EOC. 

 
As the data is collected, the State representative will evaluate data to determine if the County 
qualifies for a Presidential Declaration and if the County is eligible for Individual Assistance 
(IA), Public Assistance (PA), or both.  The Town of Surfside and others will coordinate 
through conference calls to determine the status of the County’s IA damage assessment.  
The Town will submit estimates as soon as possible. As available, it is in the interest of the 
Town to cross check damage assessment findings with those of the American Red Cross.  
This will allow for the identification of unknown damaged areas and families in need of life 
safety assistance. The methods used to evaluate the economic impact of an event will be 
focused on damages to buildings, road closures, telephone systems, sewage system, electric 
system, businesses affected and employees displaced. 

120



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Recovery  7-3 

KEY PRIORITIES OF MEDIA 
RELEASES:  
 

1. PROTECTION OF LIFE  
2. SAFETY OF RESIDENTS  
3.  PROTECTION OF PROPERTY  
4. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

 
 
7.3 LONG-TERM RECOVERY OPERATIONS  
The goal of long-term recovery is to restore the Town to pre-disaster conditions which may 
extend for months or years based upon the severity and magnitude of the disaster. Generally, 
the immediate recovery period will be conducted from the EOC. Long-term recovery will be 
coordinated by the Town Manager with support from each department head with major roles 
and responsibilities in the recovery process. The Town may consider a number of planning, 
engineering, and economic development solutions to address long-term recovery needs.  
This may include the imposition of building moratoriums for substantially damaged structures, 
business and economic stimulation policies, and others. 
 
The methods used to provide recovery information to the public are media releases and press 
conferences (to television, radio and newspaper) release through the County Joint 
Information Center, Town, County and American Red Cross web sites, the Disaster Recovery 
Centers, community bulletin boards, community forums and town meetings. The Town will not 
offer disaster assistance program in the aftermath of events that do not receive presidential or 
gubernatorial declarations.  
 
 
7.3.1 Public Assistance 
Upon receiving a Public Assistance Declaration, the Town will coordinate with a contractor 
that has been pre-selected through a competitive bid to manage the grant applications in 
accordance to the requirements established under the Stafford Act. The Director of Public 
Works, or designee, will coordinate with the contractor for public assistance requests for the 
Town. 
 
The Town has pre-identified potential mitigation projects through the Local Mitigation Strategy 
(LMS) Committee.  The notification system for applicants for funding availability is through the 
LMS meetings.   
 
7.3.2 Debris Management 
The Logistics Section Branch will activate the emergency debris removal contractor and the 
debris monitoring contractor which are responsible for emergency debris monitoring and 
removal and long-term debris management.  The Town has identified a debris contractor for 
long-term debris management, depending on 
the volume. A separate contractor has been 
selected by the town to coordinate with the 
Federal and State agencies to ensure proper 
records are kept, and disposal practices are 
completed in an environmentally sound and 
safe manner. The Finance Section will liaise 
with this contractor with regard to proper 
retention of these records for reimbursement.    
 
7.3.3 Community Relations 
The Town of Surfside Public Information 
Officer will serve as the Town’s Community 
Relations Officer. Support agencies for 
community relations are the EOC, American 
Red Cross, and the Miami-Dade County 
Public Information Officer.  

121



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Recovery  7-4 

 
The Public Information Officer is responsible for preparing and disseminating press releases, 
and conducting media events to inform the public of what actions local government is taking, 
as well as maintaining a list of contacts for the media, local public officials, and community 
leaders. 
 
In the aftermath of an event, the Town’s PIO will coordinate with the Miami-Dade County 
Joint Information Center to develop information for the community outreach programs 
providing critical victim assistance and recovery information.  If necessary, the Town can 
generate maps based on census data, flood plains, and so forth. If special information is 
required, such as pamphlets in a different language, or town meetings, these activities will be 
coordinated with community leaders, public officials, and through the Joint Information 
Center. 
 
7.3.4 Unmet Needs Coordination  
The Miami-Dade County Emergency Operations Center is responsible for coordinating the 
response to unmet needs.  The Town will evaluate unmet needs among the victims in the 
community through door to door neighborhood canvass, information received through the 
emergency hotline, and/or CERT, and relay information to the Divisional EOC.   
 
7.3.5 Disaster Recovery Center (DRC) and Operations  
The Operations Section Chief is responsible for coordinating with the County and State to 
determine if a DRC is required.  If the DRC is required, the Logistics Section Chief and State 
will identify the location, agencies to participate, and any other logistical needs of the DRC.  
The State Division of Emergency Management usually informs the County of any events 
which warrant the opening of the DRC.  The County, Town, and the State will then identify a 
location close to or centrally located to the affected areas.  Local agencies that may be 
requested to participate in the DRC are the American Red Cross, law enforcement, Building 
Inspections, Health Department, Animal Control, utilities departments, and Salvation Army.  
Others that would participate include State and Federal agencies.  During the DRC 
operations, members will be contacted by telephone or e-mail.  The DRC will be open several 
days after an event has occurred and after communications are repaired and functioning.  
 
7.3.6 Post Disaster Redevelopment Plan 
Objective 7 of the Town’s Comprehensive Plan states that the Town shall prepare and adopt 
a post disaster redevelopment plan by 2012 which will reduce the exposure of life and 
property to disasters.  Pursuant to the policy statements within this objective, elements of this 
plan will contain, but not be limited to the following:  
 

• Emergency repairs related to environmental damage; 
• Restoring economic vitality;  
• Evaluating need for building moratoriums;  
• Identifying hazard mitigation opportunities;  
• Evaluating and revising land use policies, the EOP, or other plans.  

 
7.3.7 Local Mitigation Strategy 
As is appropriate, the Town may in the future identify potential mitigation projects and submit 
them to the Local Mitigation Strategy (LMS) Committee.  The County will notify the cities of 
the availability of funding through the LMS meetings, and email notices. Notice of applicants 
briefing meeting will be issued by the State and FEMA.  
 
 

122



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Communications  8-1 

8.0 COMMUNICATIONS  
 

8.1 AVAILABLE COMMUNICATIONS SYSTEMS  
The Town has voice telephone lines. The phones are located at the Town Hall which 
functions as the Emergency Operations Center.  There is no redundancy to these BellSouth 
operated telephone lines; the Town maintains fax lines with no redundancy. The Town also 
has the following communications systems:  Approximately forty-five (45) 800 MHz radios, 
Miami-Dade Police Department’s 911, Repeater on the Florida Medical Center building, Base 
station at the Public Works building, Cable/Comcast Internet connectivity with no redundancy, 
and a Radio Communications Converter.  The Police Chief and the Fire Chief have access to 
the County 800 MHz radio system. A representative will be in the Emergency Operations 
Center whenever it is activated to provide ongoing communications with the Miami-Dade 
Police Department.  
 
If the Town implements field operations, the method of dispatching and communicating with 
emergency workers should be noted.  In addition, the communications capabilities available 
for the Town EOC and any other pre-designated emergency facility should be defined. Any 
highly detailed information, e.g., equipment inventories, system diagrams, etc., should be 
referenced and included as an Appendix. 
 

8.2 COORDINATION WITH MIAMI-DADE COUNTY AND THE  
STATE OF FLORIDA  
 
8.2.1 Coordination with Miami-Dade County  
The Town understands the vital importance of maintaining clear communications with the 
County before, during, and after a disaster event.  Because Miami-Dade Police Department 
provides emergency dispatch services for law enforcement and fire rescue services county-
wide, the County will be notified of most emergencies routinely.  It will be the responsibility of 
the first responders through the dispatch center to notify the Assistant Chief of Police of 
unusual events requiring mutual aid.  The Town will notify the County Warning Point of 
emergencies in the Town and especially if the Town has an event that requires it to activate 
its emergency plan and emergency organization.  
 
The Town will maintain a liaison in the North Miami Divisional EOC when it is activated for an 
emergency involving the Town, and information flow between the Town EOC and the liaison 
will occur.  All requests by the Town for resources from higher levels of government will be 
routed through the Divisional EOC.  The Town will participate in other inter-jurisdictional 
coordination efforts by the County, e.g., telephone conference calls, etc.  In addition, if the 
County establishes other facilities for inter-jurisdictional coordination of operations, such as a 
Joint Information Center, this text will commit the Town to participate, if involved in the 
operation and as feasible depending on resources.   
 
8.2.2 Coordination with the State of Florida and Federal Agencies 
The Town EOC will coordinate all initial communications with higher levels of government 
through the County EOC until such time as direct communications must occur.  Direct 
communications with FEMA may occur during the joint damage assessment process, with 
community outreach team members within the Town, and once the Town becomes engaged 
in the financial reimbursement process.  At this time, the Town will coordinate directly with the 
state and federal recovery agencies.  

123



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Policies and Protocols  9-1 

9.0 POLICIES AND PROTOCOLS  
 
9.1 POLICIES  
9.1.1 Plan Use for Coordination of Response of Agencies to all Types of 
Emergencies   
 
Upon activation, this EOP will be the sole document controlling and guiding all Town 
emergency operations. All procedures, implementation guides, checklists and similar 
documents utilized by the agencies and organizations assigned duties and responsibilities 
within the plan will be consistent with and supportive of it’s polices, protocols and 
procedures. 
 
9.1.2 Priorities for Emergency Response  
During the emergency decision-making process, the unified command team will adhere to 
the following priority principles in the assignment of resources:  
 

• Priority 1:  The protection of health and safety of all persons and emergency 
responders I the Town.  

• Priority 2: The protection of public property and critical community infrastructure.  
• Priority 3:  The protection of private property and valuable environmental 

characteristics of the community.  
 
9.1.3 Use of NIMS and ICS for Management of Emergency Response 
The Town of Surfside has adopted NIMS and will apply the ICS operational concepts during 
all emergency response operations. 
 
9.1.4 Responsibilities of Municipal Employees for Emergency Response  
All assigned personnel must report for emergency response duty and then request relief 
later to attend to personal concerns.  
 
9.1.5 Assistance Provided Without Preferential Treatment  
The Town of Surfside will provide emergency services and assistance to all disaster victims 
within the jurisdiction without discrimination for demographic characteristics or economic 
status, but rather based solely on the urgency of the victims’ needs. 
 
9.1.6 Municipal Resources  
The Town of Surfside has limited resources and facilities.  During a disaster the use of Town 
facilities, personnel, equipment, and supplies will be consistent with the policies, protocols 
and operational concepts defined in this plan.  The Town must exhaust all locally available 
resources prior to requesting emergency assistance from other jurisdictions or higher levels 
of government.  This includes the use of resources available through existing mutual aid 
agreements and pre-emergency contracts with other organizations.  Upon request from 
Miami-Dade County and/or adjacent jurisdictions, the Town of Surfside may deploy Town-
controlled resources and assistance outside of the municipality provided the urgent needs of 
the Town and its residents have been adequately addressed, and requested resources are 
no longer needed to support emergency operations within the Town of Surfside.  

124



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Policies and Protocols  9-2 

 
 
9.1.7 Operations Following Failure of Municipal Continuity of Government  
A catastrophic disaster could severely disrupt the ability to maintain the continuity of 
municipal government for a period of time.  If a disaster event so severely impacts the Town 
of Surfside, the following municipal officials must make the determination, based upon 
assessment and recommendations from the Town Manager, that they are unable to 
maintain minimum continuity of government for a limited period of time:  

 

1.  The Mayor as the official chief elected officer; 

2.  In the absence of the Mayor, the Vice Mayor;   

3.  In the absence of the Vice Mayor, the Town Commission may determine that the 
municipal government cannot be sustained for a limited period of time. 

 
Once the determination has been made, the Town may request that Miami-Dade County 
Board of County Commissioners temporarily assume all local governmental responsibilities 
in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. This transfer of responsibility will occur 
within the designated timeframe only and must be re-evaluated upon termination of the 
designated timeframe. 
 
In the event Miami-Dade County representatives cannot establish communication with the 
municipality within 24 hours following a catastrophic event to confirm the continuity of 
municipal government, the County will assume local governance until requested by the 
Town to return control to the Mayor or other designated individual(s). 
 
9.2 PROTOCOLS  
 
9.2.1 Leadership for Management of Municipal Emergency Operations   
Due to the time sensitive constraints of life safety decisions during times of emergencies, it 
is essential that decision-making authority be clearly defined.  
 

1. In the event that an emergency affects only one political subdivision, it is the 
responsibility of the Mayor to declare a Local State of Emergency.  

2. In the event that life-safety is threatened and the Mayor cannot be immediately 
located, the Vice Mayor may declare the Local State of Emergency and activate the 
EOP.  

3. This state of emergency must be ratified or rescinded by the Town Commission 
within 24 hours when it is promulgation by the Mayor.  Florida Statute Chapter 
252.38 states that to request state assistance or invoke emergency-related mutual-
aid assistance, jurisdictions should declare a State of Local Emergency. The duration 
of each State of Emergency declared locally is limited to 7 days.  It may be extended, 
as necessary, in 7-day increments.  

Further, Chapter 252.38, Florida Statutes, and Town of Surfside EOP Adoption Resolution 
state that under a State of Emergency, the municipality may have the power and authority to 
waive the procedures and formalities as they related to the following:  
 

125



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Policies and Protocols  9-3 

a.  Performance of public work and taking whatever prudent action is necessary to 
ensure the health, safety, and welfare of the community,  

b.  Entering into contracts,  

c.  Incurring obligations, 

d.  Employment of permanent and temporary workers,  

e.  Utilization of volunteer workers, 

f.  Rental of equipment,  

g.  Acquisition and distribution, with or without compensation, of supplies, materials, and 
facilities,  

h.  Appropriation and expenditure of public funds.  
 
The Miami-Dade County Board of County Commissioners, the Governor of the State of 
Florida, and the President of the United States may also declare a State of Emergency 
depending upon the geographic impact of the disaster.  These States of Emergency may 
impact the Town of Surfside.  When any of these levels of government declare a State of 
Emergency, it is recommended that the Town also declare a State of Emergency to legally 
indicate that the Town is activating its Emergency Operations Plan and employing all 
emergency powers necessary to protect the safety of its citizens and property.  
 
The Town of Surfside may order a mandatory evacuation when public safety is threatened 
by a natural, technological, or man-made disaster event within the boundaries of the Town. 
Miami-Dade County and the State of Florida may also order mandatory evacuations, 
establish curfews, and activate the Emergency Operations Plan.  
 
Once the State of Emergency has been declared and the EOP has been activated, the 
Town Manager, acting as the Incident Commander, may implement all policies and 
procedures detailed in this plan.  The Town Manager will direct activation of the Town’s 
EOC, and its subsequent operations, and will approve the incident action plans for the 
Town.  
 
Members of the Town Commission will have an advisory role to the Town Manager, and will 
serve as community liaisons.  
 
The Town’s on-scene incident command staff will have responsibility for management and 
supervision of all onsite operations, in accordance with the approved incident action plan. 
 
9.2.2 Chain of Command for Municipal Emergency Operations  
In accordance with NIMS, the Incident Commander of the Town of Surfside at the 
Emergency Operations Center is in command and control of all operational activities 
associated with the disaster.  On-scene incident command staff at any field disaster site, 
such as staging area or POD, is under the direct command of the Incident Commander at 
the Emergency Operations Center.  On-scene incident command staff will direct on-site 
operations in accordance with NIMS and the incident action plan approved by the Incident 
Commander at the EOC.  
 
 
 

126



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Policies and Protocols  9-4 

Chief of 
Police 

Assistant 
Chief of 
Police 

Public Works 
Director 

9.2.3 Lines of Succession for Municipal Positions 
The purpose of lines of succession is to ensure continuity of decision-making authority when 
critical decision-makers are incapacitated. The administration of the Town of Surfside is 
managed by a few critical decision-makers.  Following is the line of succession for the 
Incident Command in the Emergency Operations Center which is responsible for 
implementation of the Emergency Operations Plan: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
If none of these individuals is capable of assuming command, the Miami-Dade County 
Board of County Commissioners may temporarily assume local governmental 
responsibilities in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. This transfer of 
responsibility will occur within the designated timeframe only and must be re-evaluated upon 
termination of the designated timeframe.  
 
9.2.4 Coordination and Cooperation with Miami-Dade County  
In accordance with NIMS and Florida Statute Chapter 252, the Town of Surfside will 
coordinate emergency operations with the Miami-Dade County Emergency Operations 
Center and neighboring jurisdictions as necessary.  While personnel resources with the 
Town of Surfside are limited, it is the goal of the Town to provide a liaison to the North Miami 
Division Emergency Operations Center to ensure that decisions are coordinated.   
 
9.2.5 County Control of Emergency Operations within the Municipality   
The Town has an agreement with the Miami-Dade County Fire Department to provide fire, 
emergency medical services, EMS transport, and search and rescue operations during a 
large-scale disaster. The Town has established an Incident Management Team at the 
Emergency Operations Center consisting of key representatives for the primary response 
organizations and contractors who support emergency operations. This team will manage 
and coordinate all on-scene emergency operations necessary for the Town.  
 
 

127



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Authorities and Reference  10-1 

10.0  AUTHORITIES AND REFERENCES  
 
Local 
Town of Surfside, Ordinance Number {TBD}, Local State of Emergency  
Town of Surfside, Ordinance Number 06-1467, Purchasing Procedures  
Town of Surfside, Resolution 2004-1665, Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement  
Town of Surfside, Resolution 2005-1700, Adoption of NIMS  
 
Florida Statutes (F.S.) 
Chapter 22, Emergency Continuity of Government 
Chapter 23, Florida Mutual Aid Act 
Chapter 30, Sheriffs 
Chapter 154, Public Health Facilities 
Chapter 166, Municipalities 
Chapter 252, Emergency Management 
Chapter 381, Public Health 
Chapter 403, Environmental Control 
Chapter 406, Medical Examiners 
Chapter 768, Good Samaritan Act 
Chapter 870, Riots, Affrays, Routs, and Unlawful Assemblies 
 
Florida Administrative Code (FAC) 
9G-2, State Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan, DCA 
9G-5, Local Disaster Preparedness Agencies Approval of Local Director, DCA 
9G-6, Review of Local Emergency Management Plans, DCA 
9G-14, Hazardous Materials, DCA 
9G-22, Local Mitigation Strategy 
9J-5, Comprehensive Plan 
Florida State Executive Order No. 80-29, Disaster Preparedness, April 14, 1980 
 
Federal 
Public Law 81-920, Federal Civil Defense Act of 1950 
Public Law 84-99, Flood Emergencies 
Public Law 89-665, National Historic Preservation Act 
Public Law 93-288, Disaster Relief Act 
Public Law 93-234, Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 
Public Law 95-510, Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability 
Act of 1980 
Public Law 100-707, The Robert T. Stafford Act 
Public Law 104-321, Emergency Management Assistance Compact  
44, Code of Federal Regulations, The National Flood Insurance Program 
Executive Order 12148, Federal Emergency Management 
Homeland Security Presidential Directive 5, National Incident Management System  
Homeland Security Presidential Directive 8, Domestic Preparedness 
 
Other 
Florida Emergency Mutual Assistance Compact, 1996 

128



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Authorities and Reference  10-2 

Sample Local State of Emergency Declaration 
 
 
 

129



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Definitions and Acronyms  11-1 

Town of Surfside EOP Adoption Resolution 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

130



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Definitions and Acronyms  11-2 

11.0  DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS  
 
11.1 DEFINITIONS 
 
Area Command (Unified Area Command): An organization established (1) to oversee the 
management of multiple incidents that are each being handled by an ICS organization or (2) 
to oversee the management of large or multiple incidents to which several Incident 
Management Teams have been assigned. Area Command has the responsibility to set 
overall strategy and priorities, allocate critical resources according to priorities, ensure that 
incidents are properly managed, and ensure that objectives are met and strategies followed. 
Area Command becomes Unified Area Command when incidents are multi-jurisdictional. 
Area Command may be established at an emergency operations center facility or at some 
location other than an incident command post. 
 
Assignments: Tasks given to resources to perform within a given operational period that 
are based on operational objectives defined in the IAP. 
 
Branch: The organizational level having functional or geographical responsibility for major 
aspects of incident operations. A branch is organizationally situated between the section 
and the division or group in the Operations Section, and between the section and units in 
the Logistics Section. Branches are identified by the use of Roman numerals or by 
functional area. 
 
Chain of Command: A series of command, control, executive, or management positions in 
hierarchical order of authority. 
  
Chief: The ICS title for individuals responsible for management of functional sections: 
Operations, Planning, Logistics, Finance/Administration, and Intelligence (if established as a 
separate section). 
 
Command Staff: In an incident management organization, the Command Staff consists of 
the Incident Command and the special staff positions of Public Information Officer, Safety 
Officer, Liaison Officer, and other positions as required, who report directly to the Incident 
Commander.  
 
Operations Chief: A division is located within the ICS organization between the branch and 
resources in the Operations Section. 
 
Emergency Operations Centers (EOCs): The physical location at which the coordination 
of information and resources to support disasters. An EOC may be a temporary facility or 
may be located in a more central or permanently established facility, perhaps at a higher 
level of organization within a jurisdiction. EOCs may be organized by major functional 
disciplines (e.g., fire, law enforcement, and medical services), by jurisdiction (e.g., Federal, 
State, regional, county, Town, tribal), or some combination thereof. 
 
Emergency management plan: The "steady-state" plan maintained by various jurisdictional 
levels for responding to a wide variety of potential hazards. 
 
Function: Function refers to the five major activities in ICS: Command, Operations, 
Planning, Logistics, and Finance/Administration. The term function is also used when 

131



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Definitions and Acronyms  11-3 

describing the activity involved, e.g., the planning function. A sixth function, Intelligence, 
may be established, if required, to meet incident management needs. 
 
Incident Action Plan (IAP): An oral or written plan containing general objectives reflecting 
the overall strategy for managing an incident. It may include the identification of operational 
resources and assignments. It may also include attachments that provide direction and 
important information for management of the incident during one or more operational 
periods. 
 
Incident Command Post (ICP): The field location at which the primary tactical-level, on-
scene incident command functions are performed. The ICP may be collocated with the 
incident base or other incident facilities and is normally identified by a green rotating or 
flashing light. 
 
Incident Command System (ICS): A standardized on-scene emergency management 
construct specifically designed to provide for the adoption of an integrated organizational 
structure that reflects the complexity and demands of single or multiple incidents, without 
being hindered by jurisdictional boundaries. ICS is the combination of facilities, equipment, 
personnel, procedures, and communications operating within a common organizational 
structure, designed to aid in the management of resources during incidents. It is used for all 
kinds of emergencies and is applicable to small as well as large and complex incidents. ICS 
is used by various jurisdictions and functional agencies, both public and private, to organize 
field-level incident management operations. 
 
Incident Commander (IC): The individual responsible for all incident activities, including the 
development of strategies and tactics and the ordering and the release of resources. The IC 
has overall authority and responsibility for conducting incident operations and is responsible 
for the management of all incident operations at the incident site. 
 
Incident Management Team (IMT): The IC and appropriate Command and General Staff 
personnel assigned to an incident.  
 
Joint Information Center (JIC): A facility established to coordinate all incident-related 
public information activities. It is the central point of contact for all news media at the scene 
of the incident. Public information officials from all participating agencies should collocate at 
the JIC. 
 
Joint Information System (JIS): Integrates incident information and public affairs into a 
cohesive organization designed to provide consistent, coordinated, timely information during 
crisis or incident operations. The mission of the JIS is to provide a structure and system for 
developing and delivering coordinated interagency messages; developing, recommending, 
and executing public information plans and strategies on behalf of the IC; advising the IC 
concerning public affairs issues that could affect a response effort; and controlling rumors 
and inaccurate information that could undermine public confidence in the emergency 
response effort. 
 
Logistics: Providing resources and other services to support incident management. 
 
Logistics Section: The section responsible for providing facilities, services, and material 
support for the incident.  
 

132



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Definitions and Acronyms  11-4 

Mitigation: The activities designed to reduce or eliminate risks to persons or property or to 
lessen the actual or potential effects or consequences of an incident. Mitigation measures 
may be implemented prior to, during, or after an incident. Mitigation measures are often 
informed by lessons learned from prior incidents. Mitigation involves ongoing actions to 
reduce exposure to, probability of, or potential loss from hazards. Measures may include 
zoning and building codes, floodplain buyouts, and analysis of hazard related data to 
determine where it is safe to build or locate temporary facilities. Mitigation can include efforts 
to educate governments, businesses, and the public on measures they can take to reduce 
loss and injury. 
 
Multi-agency Coordination Entity: A multi-agency coordination entity functions within a 
broader Multi-agency Coordination System. It may establish the priorities among incidents 
and associated resource allocations, deconflict agency policies, and provide strategic 
guidance and direction to support incident management activities. 
 
Multi-agency Coordination Systems: Multi-agency Coordination Systems provide the 
architecture to support coordination for incident prioritization, critical resource allocation, 
communications systems integration, and information coordination. The components of 
Multi-agency Coordination Systems include facilities, equipment, emergency operation 
centers (EOCs), specific multi-agency coordination entities, personnel, procedures, and 
communications. These systems assist agencies and organizations to fully integrate the 
subsystems of the NIMS. 
 
Multi-jurisdictional Incident: An incident requiring action from multiple agencies that each 
have jurisdiction to manage certain aspects of an incident. In ICS, these incidents will be 
managed under Unified Command. 
 
Mutual-Aid Agreement: Written agreement between agencies and/or jurisdictions that they 
will assist one another on request, by furnishing personnel, equipment, and/or expertise in a 
specified manner. 
 
Operational Period: The time scheduled for executing a given set of operation actions, as 
specified in the Incident Action Plan. Operational periods can be of various lengths, although 
usually not over 24 hours. 
 
Operations Section: The section responsible for all tactical incident operations. In ICS, it 
normally includes subordinate branches, divisions, and/or groups. 
 
Personnel Accountability: The ability to account for the location and welfare of incident 
personnel. It is accomplished when supervisors ensure that ICS principles and processes 
are functional and that personnel are working within established incident management 
guidelines. 
 
Planning Section: Responsible for the collection, evaluation, and dissemination of 
operational information related to the incident and for the preparation and documentation of 
the IAP. This section also maintains information on the current and forecasted situation and 
on the status of resources assigned to the incident. 
 

133



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Definitions and Acronyms  11-5 

Public Information Officer: A member of the Command Staff responsible for interfacing 
with the public and media or with other agencies with incident-related information 
requirements. 
 
Reception Area: This refers to a location separate from staging areas, where resources 
report in for processing and out-processing. Reception Areas provide accountability, 
security, situational awareness briefings, safety awareness, distribution of IAPs, supplies 
and equipment, feeding, and bed down. 
 
Recovery: The development, coordination, and execution of service- and site-restoration 
plans; the reconstitution of government operations and services; individual, private sector, 
non-governmental and public-assistance programs to provide housing and to promote 
restoration; long-term care and treatment of affected persons; additional measures for 
social, political, environmental, and economic restoration; evaluation of the incident to 
identify lessons learned; post-incident reporting; and development of initiatives to mitigate 
the effects of future incidents. 
 
Recovery Plan: A plan developed by a State, local, or tribal jurisdiction with assistance from 
responding Federal agencies to restore the affected area. 
 
Resources Unit: Functional unit within the Planning Section responsible for recording the 
status of resources committed to the incident. This unit also evaluates resources currently 
committed to the incident, the effects additional responding resources will have on the 
incident, and anticipated resource needs. 
 
Section: The organizational level having responsibility for a major functional area of incident 
management, e.g., Operations, Planning, Logistics, Finance/Administration, and Intelligence 
(if established). The section is organizationally situated between the branch and the Incident 
Command. 
 
Span of Control: The number of individuals a supervisor is responsible for, usually 
expressed as the ratio of supervisors to individuals. (Under the NIMS, an appropriate span 
of control is between 1:3 and 1:7.) 
 
Staging Area: Location established where resources can be placed while awaiting a tactical 
assignment. The Operations Section manages Staging Areas. 
 
Strike Team: A set number of resources of the same kind and type that have an established 
minimum number of personnel. 
 
Task Force: Any combination of resources assembled to support a specific mission or 
operational need. All resource elements within a Task Force must have common 
communications and a designated leader. 
 
Unified Command: An application of ICS used when there is more than one agency with 
incident jurisdiction or when incidents cross-political jurisdictions. Agencies work together 
through the designated members of the UC, often the senior person from agencies and/or 
disciplines participating in the UC, to establish a common set of objectives and strategies 
and a single IAP. 
 

134



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Definitions and Acronyms  11-6 

Unit: The organizational element having functional responsibility for a specific incident 
planning, logistics, or finance/administration activity. 
 
Unity of Command: The concept by which each person within an organization reports to 
one and only one designated person. The purpose of unity of command is to ensure unity of 
effort under one responsible commander for every objective. 
 

135



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Definitions and Acronyms  11-7 

11.2 ACRONYMS 
 
CEMP ........... Comprehensive Emergency Management Plan 

EMAC ........... Emergency Management Assistance Compact 

EOC ............. Emergency Operations Center 

DRC …………Disaster Recovery Center 

EOP............... Emergency Operations Plan 

ESF ............... Emergency Support Function 

FDLE ……….. Florida Department of Law Enforcement 

FEMA ………. Federal Emergency Management Agency 

FOG ............. Field Operations Guide 

GIS ............... Geographic Information System 

HAZMAT ...... Hazardous Material 

IAP ............... Incident Action Plan 

IC .................. Incident Commander 

ICP ............... Incident Command Post 

ICS ............... Incident Command System 

IC or UC ....... Incident Command or Unified Command 

IMT ............... Incident Management Team 

JIC ................ Joint Information Center 

JIS................. Joint Information System 
NBHD …………North Miami-Dade Hospital District 

NDMS ........... National Disaster Medical System 

NGO ............. Nongovernmental Organization 

NIMS ............ National Incident Management System 

NRF .............. National Response Framework 

PIO ............... Public Information Officer 

POD ............. Point of Distribution 

SITREP ........ Situation Report 

SO ................ Safety Officer 

SOP .............. Standard Operating Procedure 

UC ................ Unified Command 

US&R ........... Urban Search and Rescue 

136



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Annexes  12-1 

12.0 ANNEXES  
 
12.1 FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT ANNEX  
The purpose of this Annex is to establish guidelines and assign responsibilities for 
emergency payroll and procurement of goods and services needed by various departments, 
during a critical incident or disaster, pursuant to the authorities granted to incorporated 
municipalities under Chapter 252, Florida Statutes, and pursuant to Town of Surfside 
Municipal Code of Ordinances, a Declaration of Local State of Emergency may be issued. 
The methodology will be compliant with Miami Dade County, the State of Florida and the 
Federal government requirements to facilitate maximum opportunity for federal claim 
reimbursement. 
 
12.1.1 Responsibility for financial management operations 
The   Finance and Administrative Section shall be responsible for the financial management 
operations.  It is the responsibility of the Finance and Administrative Section Chief to 
document and track all disaster related expenditures for the purpose of financial 
reimbursement.  The secondary person responsible for the financial management 
operations of the Town shall be the Accounting Clerk. 
 
12.1.2 Pre-disaster preparations for financial management  
The Town will finance the immediate emergency response and recovery operations required 
by an event from the available funds within the current budget.  In the event that the Town 
qualifies for a federal disaster declaration which includes public assistance funds, the Town 
will request post-disaster reimbursement for eligible expenditures.  
 
When a critical incident or disaster strikes, the Town of Surfside will declare a Local State of 
Emergency and will suspend its purchasing policies and procedures. By the authority of 
Florida Statute 252.31-91 and local ordinance {TBD} emergency purchasing procedures 
come into affect. Prudent and sound business practices will be observed to the greatest 
extent possible during a critical incident or emergency situation. 
 
The Town of Surfside may establish disaster accounts which may be funded to a level 
approved by the Town Commission.  Sub-accounts will be established to reflect the 
reimbursement categories established by the FEMA Public Assistance program for the 
following activities: 
 

a. Debris Removal 
b. Protective measures 
c. Roads and, signs and bridges 
d. Water control facilities 
e. Buildings and Equipment 
f. Public Utilities 
g. Parks, recreation and other 

137



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-1 
 
 

 
This disaster account may be utilized during critical incidents and disasters by the Town 
Manager as authorized by the Town Commission. This fund shall be used to cover expenditures 
that affect departmental operations town wide. 
 
At the beginning of each hurricane season, open purchase orders for emergency procurement 
will be established by the Finance Director. These purchase orders will be identified specifically 
with a purchase order prefix designating emergency purchase order. 
 
The Human Resource Director will ensure that, during non-disaster times, staff with emergency 
management assignments receives information and/or training regarding state and federal 
requirements for documentation of emergency expenditures and operations. As necessary, 
following activation of the EOP the Finance and Administrative Section will be responsible for 
providing any additional information or guidance regarding financial documentation 
requirements. 
 
12.1.3 Financial management procedures 
 
12.1.3.1 Immediate actions needed for authorization of emergency declaration 
When normal purchasing and contracting rules are suspended, it is incumbent upon the Incident 
Commander to advise Town employees of the rules that are in effect for emergency purchasing 
and contracting. 
 
Cash on Hand:  A check request payable to the Assistant Chief of Police will be prepared in the 
amount of $25,000. The Town Manager and Finance Director will sign the request form which 
will be coded to petty cash #001-0000-102-0000 (a balance sheet account) and logged in on a 
Petty Cash Audit Control Form.  The cash will be stored in 25 envelopes, each containing 
$1,000 (subject to the Finance Department Petty Cash Audit Procedures, including Log in 
Receipt and Record Procedures) and placed in the Police Department Property and Evidence 
safe.  On December 1st (post hurricane season) the cash is to be redeposited into the SunTrust 
operating account for use in a disaster. 
 
The Town Manager will advise the Town Commission of all Financial Management actions. 
 
12.1.3.2 Methods for Emergency Purchases 
When a disaster strikes, the Operation and Planning Section personnel will determine what 
supplies or services are needed to immediately address the current incident objectives.  The 
Logistics Section evaluates Town resource inventories to determine if goods are available in 
Town warehouses or other inventories available to the Town before attempting to purchase the 
goods from a vendor. 
 
Purchase Orders: If the resource is available from approved vendor, a manual or system 
emergency purchase order will be issued.  Manual purchase orders should be converted to 
system purchase orders when the system is operational. A manual or system emergency 
purchase order must be authorized by the Town Manager before the supplier/vendor/contractor 
delivers the goods or performs the service as required. 
 
Credit Cards:  Town-issued store-specific credit cards (i.e. Home Depot or Publix) are controlled 
and issued by the Town’s Finance Department.  Cards may be signed out via a log after 
approval from the Finance Director.  A general use credit card is issued to the Town Manager.   

138



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-2 
 
 

 
Purchasing procedures have been established through Ordinance Number 06-1467.  Although 
typically purchases of $2,500 or more require a competitive bidding process under normal 
situations, there are technically no spending limits during emergencies due to the provision of 
waivers and exemptions in the ordinance.  Purchases made under these provisions must be 
approved by the Town Manager.   
 
Section 3-12 of this ordinance provides authority to the Town Commission to waive the 
competitive bidding process under certain circumstances. Furthermore, Section 3-13 allows 
exemptions from bidding for purchases arising out of or because of emergencies in which quick 
action is necessitated. If the exemptions in this section are invoked, a written determination of 
the basis for the emergency and for the selection of the particular contractor or vendor shall be 
included in the contract file.  As soon as practicable, a record of each emergency procurement 
shall document the following:  
 

 The contractor’s name,  
 The amount and type of the contract,  
 A listing of the item(s) procured under the contract,  
 The identification number of the contract file.  

    
Supplier/Contractor/Vendor must indicate the assigned mission number on their invoice for 
payment. The mission number will be at a minimum, the mission/assignment number as 
designated by the Town of Surfside and may also include an additional mission/assignment 
number for the County and the State. 
 
 
12.1.3.3 Documentation of Personnel in Emergency Operations 
Personnel utilized in Emergency Operations will keep detailed time sheets with their dates, 
times, and duties performed during Emergency Operations. In addition, the mission number 
assigned by the Town of Surfside, Miami Dade County EOC, and/or the State will be noted next 
to each date worked as necessary.  
 
12.1.3.4 Final Disposition of Financial Documentation 
The Town Clerk shall be the person responsible for the final disposition of the documentation 
gathered under conditions of both Presidentially-declared disasters and non-declared critical 
incidents and disasters.  The final format will be hard-copy documentation with electronic copy 
back-up and the archives will be stored for a minimum of 3 years from the date of final payment 
from FEMA, in the Town Clerk’s office.   The documentation will be provided to Miami Dade 
County and/or the State of Florida as requested in the format requested within an acceptable 
and customary time. 
 
12.2 RESOURCE MANAGEMENT ANNEX  
The purpose of this annex is to provide guidance and outline procedures for efficiently obtaining, 
managing, allocating, and monitoring the use of resources during critical incidents or disasters. 
Pursuant to the authorities granted to incorporated municipalities under Chapter 252, Florida 
Statutes of the Town of Surfside Municipal Code of Ordinances, a Declaration of Local State of 
Emergency may be issued to expedite resource management activities. 
 

139



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-3 
 
 

Used in support of NIMS, the combination of facilities, equipment, personnel, procedures and 
communication, resources from local government as well as external agencies and 
nongovernmental agencies may work together to coordinate the Town’s response. 
 
12.2.1 Physical resources (expendable and non-expendable resources)  
In order to meet the resources needs of emergency operations, the Town personnel should first 
exhaust local resource capabilities within existing inventories. Additional supplies and 
equipment required for emergency operations will generally be available from normal sources of 
supply. However, some established vendors may not be able to provide needed materials on an 
emergency basis or may become victims of the emergency situation.  Standby sources should 
be identified in advance and provisions should be made for arranging alternative sources of 
supply on an urgent need basis.  
 
If all Town resources are exhausted, then the Logistics Section Chief will make a request of the 
Miami Dade County EOC for the resources. If the County resources are exhausted, the County 
will make a request to the State for the resources. If the State’s resources are exhausted, a 
request will be made to the Federal government. 
 
12.2.1.1 Resources by municipal agency or municipal contractor 
All municipal Departments are requested to maintain inventories of the personnel, equipment 
and supplies.  The Controller and Accounting Clerk will update the emergency personnel 
contact information annually. The Human Resources Coordinator and the Recreation Director 
will maintain a list of town resources and update this list annually. 
 
12.2.1.2 Classification of physical resources 
The Town of Surfside understands that the NIMS classification methodology is still under 
development. The Town administration is committed to continually monitor the NIMS 
requirements and implement them as appropriate within the Town. All Town resources, 
pursuant to the NIMS, are to be classified by kinds and types.   
 
12.2.1.3 Inventories accessed and utilized  
Town of Surfside warehouses and resources will be controlled by the Logistics Section Chief.  
The Chief shall monitor the inventories, locations and assignments of all inventories and also 
monitor the deployment of any resources.  A checklist to include white boards, magnets, contact 
information, paper, markers, etc. for each position will be posted in the EOC. 
 
Miami-Dade County is in the process of installing two (2) traffic signal interconnects at 1) 96th 
Street and Collins and 2) 96th Street and Harding.  The Town has purchased one generator and 
the Village of Bal Halbour will purchase the second generator.  The Town will store the 
generator in a garage to keep it safe from the elements.  The generator will be deployed if a 
traffic signal malfunctions. 
 
The Code Red Notification System is now available for the Town and its residents.  Residents 
can register their telephone and cell phone numbers with the Town by logging into the Town’s 
website to enter their name, address, and telephone number(s).  The information tracked in the 
Code Red Notification System will be used for emergencies only. 
 
12.2.1.4 Private vendor, mutual aid or volunteer resources  
The protocol to procure additional resources are as follows: activate and direct deployment of 
additional local resources to the incident site(s); request mutual aid assistance; purchase, rent, 

140



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-4 
 
 

or lease supplies and equipment; obtain donated resources from businesses, individuals, or 
volunteer groups; and contract for necessary services to support emergency operations. 
 
The following is a list of the Town’s neighboring Mutual Aid Agreements (MAA) and their 
expiration date. 
 
 

City      Expiration Date 
City of Miami Beach     2010 
North Miami      2011 
Bal Harbour      2014 
Aventura      2011 
Village of Indian Creek   2010 
Miami Shores     2010 
City of Miami     2010 
Sunny Isles      2010 
Bay Harbour      2010 
Coral Gables      2012 
School Board     No expiration date 

 
 
The Town Attorney shall determine the potential liabilities before accepting offers of donations 
of supplies, equipment or services or committing manpower from individual or volunteer groups 
to emergency operations. 
 
12.2.1.5 Tracking procedures for all resources 
The Logistics Section Chief is responsible for the management of all resources in support of the 
current incident objectives. In compliance with the resources management procedures outlined 
above, the Logistics Section Chief will track resources needs and assign a mission number. The 
Logistics Section Chief will complete ICS Form which details the following information for 
resource management purposes including: requesting entity, brief statement of need, originating 
entity, method of delivery and location of delivery, associated expendable resources, anticipated 
duration, funding etc.  All resources that are the property of the Town of Surfside will be 
inventoried and identified by their property control number as assigned by the Town.  Resources 
which are processed will be logged onto spreadsheet controlled by the Logistics Section, noting 
item, deployment, time out and expected return, and any other pertinent information. 
 
12.2.1.7 Protocols for resources 
In order to ensure the appropriate management and demobilization of personnel, supplies and 
equipment, the Town of Surfside Logistics Section Chief will work cooperatively with the 
Planning Section Chief to develop a demobilization plan. The plan shall address the following 
issues to ensure that the resources are appropriately managed and returned. 
 
The Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement details the requirement associated with general 
responsibility for payment and/or reimbursement of resources acquired through mutual aid. This 
agreement was adopted through Town of Surfside Resolution No .2004-1665. The associated 
resource request forms are attached to this mutual aid agreement. 

141



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-5 
 
 

 
 
12.2.2 Personnel resources  
All Town departments are required to have emergency personnel assigned in case of critical 
incidents or disasters.  The Incident Commander or his designee will identify and coordinate the 
placement of Town employees that may be reassigned to temporary emergency duties should a 
critical incident or disaster impact the Town.  If the required skills and/or expertise are not 
available within existing Town employees, the Incident Commander will approve the temporary 
workers.   
 
Rosters of personnel working for the Town of Surfside on a daily basis in emergency operations 
will be maintained by the immediate supervisor of the employee, and copies of that information 
will be relayed verbally or in writing to the Operations Section Chief at least twice a day. A final 
hardcopy or electronic copy of the day’s roster will be sent to the Operations Section Chief at 
the beginning of the shift change and at the end of the shift change.  All employees must sign-in 
or check-in with the operations section and their immediate supervisor and receive a 
mission/assignment number. The Human Resources Director maintains all personnel 
certifications and NIMS-related training requirements on file in the Human Resources office. 
 
12.3 PUBLIC INFORMATION ANNEX  
The PIO is responsible for disseminating public information during emergency response and 
disaster recovery operations.   In the situations where there is advance notice of an impending 
threat and the County and Town EOCs are activated, then the Town PIO will coordinate all 
public information releases with the County JIC.  In the event, however, of an incident without 
prior notices (such as a tornado, hazardous materials spill, or terrorist incident) it is the PIOs 
responsibility to coordinated with the Town Manager and field command staff to support the 
immediate release of protective actions.   
 
The Public Information Officer will: 
 
• Ensure the operability of all available communication, fax, and information management 

systems; take corrective actions if necessary 

• Consult with the Incident Commander/Town Manager and the Operations Section Chief to 
determine the need for immediate public protective actions (evacuation or shelter in place) 
and formulate the emergency instructions or assist the field command staff 

• Coordinate with field command staff to warn the public at risk and to give the emergency 
instruction 

• Request assistance from the Miami Dade County Division of Emergency Management to 
activate the Emergency Alert System 

• Provide the emergency warning and instruction to broadcast media outlets serving the 
Town and request its broadcast if the JIC is not activated  

• Coordinate all press releases with the Miami Dade County Joint Information Center to 
ensure consistent releases   

• Coordinate with the Miami Dade County Joint Information Center to develop community 
outreach information for victim assistance and recovery information  

• Obtain the location of evacuee shelters to be opened and disseminate information 

142



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-6 
 
 

• Coordinate closely with the emergency information hotline to ensure that citizen concerns 
are being addressed in media releases and on the internet website 

• Coordinate with media representatives to schedule press interview with Town officials and 
elected officials. If the situation warrants, schedule press briefings at regular intervals and 
notify the Town Manager 

• Ensure that all public information is forwarded to the County JIC and that all information 
released from the County JIC is received at the Town EOC  

• Provide public information from the Town and County to requesting parties 

• Monitor media broadcasts and publications regarding the Town’s response and recovery 
operations for accuracy; Take corrective actions as needed  

In the recovery phase, prepare public information regarding recovery programs and reentry 
procedures within the Town. 
 
It is the responsibility of the PIO to ensure that necessary resources, including personnel, 
equipment, and supplies are available to perform the public information function.   

143



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-7 
 
 

 

Appendix 1: 
 

ICS Forms 
 
 

144



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-8 
 

ICS Form 201 – Situation Report  

INCIDENT BRIEFING 
1.  Incident Name 

 

2.  Date Prepared 

 

3.  Time Prepared 

 

4.  Map Sketch 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ICS 201 
Page 1 of 4 

5.  Prepared by (Name and Position) 

 

 

145



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-9 
 

 

6.  Summary of Current Actions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ICS 201 
 
Page 2 

 

146



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-10 
 

 
 

7.  Current Organization 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ICS 201 
 
Page 3 

 

Incident Commander
(Police Chief) 

Operations 
(Public Safety) 

Finance 
(Finance Director) 

 
Liaison 
 Officer 

 

Public Works  
(ESF 3) 

Public Works Director 

Public 
Health / Medical 
(ESF 6, 8, & 18) 

Miami-Dade County 

Fire/HazMat 
SAR 

(ESF 4, 9, & 10) 
Miami-Dade County 

Fire Rescue) 

Safety & Security 
(ESF 16) 

(Public Safety) 

Force Account 
(Human Resources 

Director) 

Planning 
(Town Clerk) 

Logistics 
(Parks & 

Recreation Director) 

 
Safety 
 Officer 

Information  
Officer  

(Water Dept.) 

Contracted Services 
(Purchasing & 

Contracts Manager 

Damage Assessment 
(DA Team)  

Situation Unit/ 
Documentation  
(Town Clerk) 

 

Resources/Food & 
Water  

(ESF 7 & 11) 
Miami-Dade County  

 

Energy (ESF 12/ 
Comm. (ESF 2) 

Miami-Dade 
 County 

Volunteers & 
Donations  
(ESF 15) 

Incident Action 
Planning 

(Special Projects 
Coordinator) 

 

Information 
Technology 

 

147



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-11 
 

 
8.  Resources Summary 

Resources Ordered  Resource Identification  ETA  On Scene Location/Assignment 

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

ICS 201 
 
Page 4 

 

 

148



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-12 
 

ICS Form 202 – Incident Action Plan  
 

INCIDENT OBJECTIVES 
1. INCIDENT NAME 

 
2.  DATE 

 
3.  TIME 

 

4.  OPERATIONAL PERIOD (DATE/TIME) 

 

5.  GENERAL CONTROL OBJECTIVES FOR THE INCIDENT (INCLUDE ALTERNATIVES) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.  WEATHER FORECAST FOR OPERATIONAL PERIOD 

 
 
 
 
 

7.  GENERAL SAFETY MESSAGE 

 
 
 
 

8.  Attachments (  if attached) 

 Organization List (ICS 203)         Medical Plan (ICS 206)       

 Assignment List (ICS 204)                     Incident Map      
 Communications Plan (ICS 205)     Traffic Plan         

  

9.  PREPARED BY (PLANNING SECTION CHIEF) 

 
10.  APPROVED BY (INCIDENT COMMANDER) 

 

 

149



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-13 
 

ICS Form 203 – Organizational Assignment List  
 

1. INCIDENT NAME 2. DATE PREPARED 3. TIME PREPARED ORGANIZATION ASSIGMENT LIST 
   

POSITION NAME 4. OPERATIONAL PERIOD (DATE/TIME) 
   
5. INCIDENT COMMAND AND STAFF 9. OPERATIONS SECTION 
INCIDENT COMMANDER  CHIEF  
DEPUTY  DEPUTY  
SAFETY OFFICER  a. BRANCH I- DIVISION/GROUPS 
INFORMATION OFFICER  BRANCH DIRECTOR  
LIAISON OFFICER  DEPUTY  
 DIVISION/GROUP   
6. AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES DIVISION/ GROUP   
AGENCY NAME DIVISION/ GROUP   
  DIVISION/GROUP   
  DIVISION /GROUP   
   
  b. BRANCH II- DIVISIONS/GROUPS 
  BRANCH DIRECTOR  
  DEPUTY  
  DIVISION/GROUP   
7. PLANNING SECTION DIVISION/GROUP   
CHIEF  DIVISION/GROUP   
DEPUTY  DIVISION/GROUP   
RESOURCES UNIT   
SITUATION UNIT  c. BRANCH III- DIVISIONS/GROUPS 
DOCUMENTATION UNIT  BRANCH DIRECTOR  
DEMOBILIZATION UNIT  DEPUTY  
TECHNICAL SPECIALISTS  DIVISION/GROUP   
  DIVISION/GROUP   
  DIVISION/GROUP   
   
8. LOGISTICS SECTION d. AIR OPERATIONS BRANCH 
CHIEF  AIR OPERATIONS BR. DIR.  
DEPUTY  AIR TACTICAL GROUP SUP.  
  AIR SUPPORT GROUP SUP.  
  HELICOPTER COORDINATOR  
a.  SUPPORT BRANCH  AIR TANKER/FIXED WING CRD.  
DIRECTOR   
SUPPLY UNIT   
FACILITIES UNIT   
GROUND SUPPORT UNIT  10. FINANCE/ADMINISTRATION SECTION 
  CHIEF  
  DEPUTY  
b. SERVICE BRANCH  TIME UNIT  
DIRECTOR  PROCUREMENT UNIT  
COMMUNICATIONS UNIT  COMPENSATION/CLAIMS UNIT  
MEDICAL UNIT  COST UNIT  
FOOD UNIT   

PREPARED BY (RESOURCES UNIT) 

 

 
 

 

150



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-14 
 

ICS Form 205 – Communications Plan 
1. Incident Name  2. Date/Time Prepared  3. Operational Period 

Date/Time INCIDENT RADIO COMMUNICATIONS PLAN 
     

4. Basic Radio Channel Utilization 
System/Cache  Channel  Function  Frequency/Tone  Assignment  Remarks 

       

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

5. Prepared by (Communications Unit) 

 

 
 

 
 

151



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms  A1-15 
 

 
ICS 206 – Medical Plan 

MEDICAL PLAN 
1. Incident Name 

 
2. Date Prepared 

 
3. Time Prepared 

 
4. Operational Period 

 

5.  Incident Medical Aid Station 

Medical Aid Stations Location Paramedics 
  Yes         No 

       

                    

                    

                    

6.  Transportation 

A.  Ambulance Services 

Name Address Phone Paramedics 
  Yes         No 

        

                          

                          

B.  Incident Ambulances 

Name Location Paramedics 
  Yes         No 

               

                    

                    

7.  Hospitals 

Name Address Travel Time 
Air Ground Phone Helipad 

Yes No 
Burn Center 
Yes No 

                    

                                        

                                        

8.  Medical Emergency Procedures 

 

Prepared by (Medical Unit Leader) 

 
10. Reviewed by (Safety Officer) 

 

152



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms       A1-16 
 

 
153



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms       A1-17 
 

ICS Form 211 – Check-in Form 
 

 

INCIDENT CHECK-IN LIST 1. Incident Name 2. Check-In Location (complete all that apply) 3. Date/Time 

Check one: 
 Personnel  Handcrew  Misc. 
 Engines  Dozers 
 Helicopters  Aircraft 

 

 Base 

 

 Camp 

 

 Staging Area 

 

 ICP Restat 

 

 Helibase 

  

Check-In Information 
4.  List Personnel (overhead) by Agency & Name -OR- 
List equipment by the following format: 

5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 12. 13. 14. 16. 16. 

 
Agency 

 
Single 

 
Kind 

 
Type 

 
I.D. No/Name 

Order/Request 
Number 

Date/ Time 
Check-In 

 
Leader’s Name

Total No. 
Personnel 

Manifest  
  Yes         No

Crew or 
Individual’s 

Weight 

 
Home Base 

Departure Point Method of 
Travel 

Incident 
Assignment 

 
Other 

Qualifications 

Sent to 
RESTAT 
Time/Int 

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

Page ___ of  ____ 
17. Prepared by (Name and Position) Use back for remarks or comments 
 

154



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms       A1-18 
 155



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms   A1-19 
  

                                            DEMOBLIZATION CHECKOUT LIST     
ICS-221 
          
1. Incident Name / Number 
 
 

2. Date / Time 
 

3. Demob. No. 
 

4. Unit / Personnel Released 
 
 
5. Transportation Type / No. 
 
  
6. Actual Release Date / Time 7. Manifest           Yes      No 

 
    Number    __________________________________ 
 

8. Destination 
 
     
______________________________________________ 

 
9. Area / Region / Agency Notified 
 
    Name  ______________________________________ 
 
    Date    ______________________________________ 
 

10. Unit Leader Responsible for Collecting Performance Rating 
 
11.  Unit / Personnel                   You and your resources have been released subject to sign-off from the  
                                                    following  [DEMOB Unit Leader  the appropriate box(es)] : 
 
Logistics Section  
 
                                               ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Planning Section 
 
                                               ___________________________________________________________ 
 
Finance Section 
 
                                               ___________________________________________________________ 
 
      
      
        Other 
 
                                            ____________________________________________________________ 
 
                                            ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
12. Remarks 
 
      
 
 
 
ICS Form 221                                   Instructions on Back                                                                        

156



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms   A1-20 
  

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE DEMOBILIZATION CHECKOUT 
 
 
Prior to actual demobilization, Planning Section (Demobilization Unit) should check with the Command Staff 
(Liaison Officer) to determine any agency specific needs related to demobilization and release. If any, add to 
line Number 11. 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Item  Item 
Number  Title     Instructions 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
    1. Incident Name/No.   Print Name and/or Number of incident. 
 
    2.  Date/Time   Enter Date and Time prepared. 
 
    3. Demob No.   Enter Agency Request Number, Order Number, or  

Agency Demobilization Number if applicable. 
 
    4. Unit/Personnel Released  Enter appropriate vehicle or Strike Team/Task Force 

I.D. Number(s) and Leader's name or individual over-head 
or staff personnel being released. 

 
    5. Transportation Type/No.  Method and vehicle I.D. Number for transportation back 

to home unit. Enter N/A if own transportation is 
provided. *Additional specific details should be included 
in Remarks, block #12. 

  
    6. Actual Release Date/time  To be completed at conclusion of demobilization at time of 

actual release from incident. Would normally be last 
item of form to be completed. 

 
    7. Manifest    Mark appropriate box. If yes, enter manifest number. 

Some agencies require a manifest for air travel. 
 
    8. Destination   Location to which Unit or personnel have been released, 

i.e., Area, Region, Home base, Airport, Mobilization 
Center, etc. 

 
    9. Area/Agency/Region Notified Identify Area, Agency, or Region notified and enter date 

& time of notification. 
 
 
  10. Unit Leader   Self-explanatory. Note, not all agencies require these ratings. 

Responsible for 
Collecting 
Performance Ratings 

 
   11. Unit/Personnel   Demobilization Unit Leader will identify with a check in the box 

to the left of those units requiring check-out. Identified 
Unit Leaders are to initial to the right to indicate release. 

 
      Blank boxes are provided for any additional check (unit 

requirements as needed), i.e., Safety Officer, Agency 
Representative, etc. 

  
   12. Remarks    Any additional information pertaining to demobilization or 

release. 
    
 
 
 
 

157



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms   A1-21 
  

 

UNIT LOG 
1. Incident Name 

      

2. Date Prepared 

      

3. Time Prepared 

      

4. Unit Name/Designators 

      

5. Unit Leader (Name and Position) 

      

6. Operational Period 

      

7. Personnel Roster Assigned 
Name ICS Position Home Base 

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

                  

8. Activity Log 
Time Major Events 

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            

            
9. Prepared by (Name and Position) 

      

158



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms   A1-22 
  159



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

Appendix 1: ICS Forms   A1-23 
  

ICS 213 
GENERAL MESSAGE 

TO:  POSITION:  

FROM:   POSITION:  

SUBJECT:   DATE:  TIME:  

MESSAGE: 

 

SIGNATURE: 
 

POSITION: 
 

REPLY: 

 

DATE: 
 

TIME: 
 

SIGNATURE/POSITION: 
 

160



Town of Surfside 
Emergency Operations Plan 

   
  
Appendix 2: Damage Assessment Forms   A2-1 
 

Appendix 2: 
 

Damage Assessment Forms

161



Town of Surfs
Emergency Operations P

    
endix 2: Damage Assessment Forms      A2-1 

162



Town of Surfs
Emergency Operations P

    
endix 2: Damage Assessment Forms      A2-2 

163



Town of Surfs
Emergency Operations P

    
endix 2: Damage Assessment Forms      A2-3 

164



Appendix 3:
 

Daily Activity Log

165



Town of Surfs
Emergency Operations P

    
endix 3: Daily Activity Log   A3-1 

 

166



167

deastman
Typewritten Text
3H



168



169



170



171

deastman
Typewritten Text
3I



172



173



174



175

deastman
Typewritten Text
4A1



176



177



178



179



180



181

deastman
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284



285



286



287



288



289



290



291



292



293



294



295



296



297



298



299



300



301



302



303



304



305



306



307



308



309



310



311



312



313



314



315



316



317



318



319



320



321



322



323



324



325



326



327



328



329



330



331



332



333



334



335



336



337



338



339



340



341



342



343



344



345



346



347



348



349



350



351



352



353



354



355



356



357



358



359



360



361



362



363



364



365



366



367



368



369



370



371



372



373



374



375



376



377



378



379



380

deastman
Typewritten Text
4A2



381



382



383



384



385

deastman
Typewritten Text
4B1



386



387



388



389



390



391

deastman
Typewritten Text
4B2



392



393



394



395



396



397



398



399



400



401



402

deastman
Typewritten Text
4B3



403



404



405



406



5 A 1

deastman
Typewritten Text
5A



5 A 2



5 A 3



5 A 4



5 A 5



5 A 6



5 A 7



5 A 8



5 A 9



5 A 10



5 A 11



5 A 12



5 A 13



5 A 14



5 A 15



5 A 16



5 A 17



5 A 18



5 A 19



5 A 20



5 A 21



5 A 22



5 A 23



5 A 24



5 A 25



5 A 26



5 A 27



5 A 28



5 A 29



5 A 30



5 A 31



5 A 32



5 A 33



5 A 34



5 A 35



5 A 36



5 A 37



5 A 38



5 A 39



5 A 40



5 A 41



5 A 42



5 A 43



5 A 44



5 A 45



5 A 46



5 A 47



5 A 48



5 A 49



5 A 50



5 A 51



5 A 52



5 A 53



5 A 54



5 A 55



5 A 56



5 A 57



5 A 58



5 A 59



5 A 60



5 A 61



5 A 62



5 A 63



5 A 64



5 A 65



5 A 66



5 A 67



5 A 68



5 A 69



5 A 70



5 A 71



5 A 72



5 A 73



5 A 74



407

deastman
Typewritten Text
5A

deastman
Typewritten Text

deastman
Typewritten Text
Attachment B



408



409



410

deastman
Typewritten Text
5B



411



412



413



414



415



416



417



418



419



420



421



422



423



424



425

deastman
Typewritten Text
8A



426



427



428



429



430



431



432



433



434



435



436



437

deastman
Typewritten Text
8B



438



439



440



441



442



443



444



445


	Minutes 12-8-09
	Minutes 12-15-09
	Monthly Budget to Actual Expense
	CGA Project Progress Report
	cc Mutual Aid Agreements
	Resolutions Mutual Aid Agreement M-D Police
	Resolution Mutual Aid Agreement Miami Shores Village
	Resolution Mutual Aid Agreement Sunny Isles Beach
	Emergency Operations Plan
	FINAL Surfside EOP.pdf
	1.1 PLAN PURPOSE
	Table 1:  Demographics 
	Sex/Age Group
	Agency/position


	Debris Removal
	7.3.3 Community Relations
	INCIDENT BRIEFING

	                                            DEMOBLIZATION CHECKOUT LIST                       ICS-221

	Addition of Special Masters
	Lifeguard Stand
	EAR
	Carport Canopies
	Property Maintenance Standards Ordinance
	Ord - Declaration of State of Emergency
	 Ord - Regulated Uses and Joint Uses
	Reso - West Construction, Inc.
	Resolution Proposed Revised Investment Policy
	Proposed Maranon Settlement Agreement
	Proposed Downtown Vacant Lot Acquisition



